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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be
attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the group) faced the most difficult
and challenging year in history in 2011. Because the market change
had significantly impacted our business development, turnover of
the group dropped and the group recorded a loss in 2011. There
were the following factors contributed to the result:

1) Loss on disposal of financial assets because of the financial crisis

2) As there was a significant change in the Chinese Government’s
policies and regulations in new drug approval, especially the
newly released GMP regulation which led to the increase in
rigidity and cautiously in government approval and increased the
timing and risk in new drug development, the total revenue
dropped significantly in 2011 with rising cost.

Because Pharmaceutical development service (PDS), the former
major business of the group was heavily hurt in 2011, the group
had to start a business reconstruction in 2011. The Group
abandoned PDS business and focused on clinical services and
post-marketing clinical services. The group had made some
achievements under this business strategy in 2012. In 2012,
turnover of the group increased rapidly and recorded a profit
compared with loss in 2011.

Strategic and Operational Highlights

The contracted pharmaceutical research(CRO) market had sharply
extended from discovery to clinical services and post-marketing
clinical services. The main market of CRO industry will be clinical
services and post-marketing clinical services. The group had
adjusted the strategy position to meet the market change. Our
strategy will changed from integrated services to focusing on
clinical services and post-marketing clinical services.

The group is a major clinical services organization in China that
provides global clinical, preclinical and regulatory affair services.
It is a leader in oncology, hepatitis, vaccine, CNS, cardiovascular,
hematology, diabetes, allergy and immunology. The Company
heavily invests in establishing clinical research operation units to
drive the future growth of the Company:

. VPS Clinical is international listed company that take a
leading position in clinical trail base in China. VPS Clinical
focuses on innovation drug and MCT(Multiple Center
Clinical Trial), it is a clinical trail research organization
famous in greater, faster, better and more economic.

. VPRA-Porsche Center, Safe arrival at full speed ahead,

First and Best in Class for ten years.
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. VPS-mart Postmarketing,clinical research institute of
drug postmarketing,the leader for clinical research and

medical services in Asia.

. CNS-VPS Institute, Clinical Research Institute of
Neuropsychiatry, pain treatment center,

. Vacc-VPS intitute, Vaccine clinical research base in China.
. One-VPS, Cancer and AIDS clinical research centre.

. Diab-VPS, clinical research Centre of Endocrinology and
Diabetes.

. CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research center.

»  SAS-Venturepharm data management and medical statistics
center.

Exciting Future

Looking ahead, we remain confident that we will be at the
forefront in capitalizing upon the global outsourcing opportunity
as it unfolds. The Chinese pharmaceutical industry is experiencing
consolidation amongst key players, a trend which is expected to
gain momentum in the future. While striving unceasingly to
exercise strong leadership in the industry in China, we remain
firmly committed to unlocking shareholder value through the
delivery of high quality service solutions.

In closing, I would like to thank the management and all of our
employees for their dedication and commitment. On behalf of
everyone at Venturepharm, we extend our sincerest appreciation
to our shareholders for their continuing repose of confidence in the
Company. We will deliver improved value in 2012 and the years
to come. We look forward to your ongoing support and to sharing
this dynamic growth phase of our journey with you.

By order of the Board
William Xia Guo
Chairman

21 March 2013
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Year ended 31 December
BE+A=1T—HILEE
2011 2010
—F——1F ZE-F4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANE#¥TT NREETIT
Results B
Revenue g 18,099 37,687
Loss for the year FH EE (153,796) (57,260)
Assets and Liabilities P M F 1
Total Assets APt pE 37,968 200,150
Total Liabilities A i 134,720 143,825
Shareholders’ equity I ES (96,952) 56,325

1.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, consolidated
turnover of the Group amounted to RMB18,099,000
representing a decrease of 52% compared with
RMB37,687,000 of last year .

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the loss before
income tax of the Group was RMB 149,772,000
compared with loss of RMB 55,422,000 of last year.
The loss in 2011 was mainly contributed by the
following special factors: provision for impairment
losses of work-in-progress RMB 57,423,000, provision
for impairment, losses of trade receivable RMB
7,296,000, provision for impairment losses of other
receivable RMB 11,113,000, loss on revaluation of
convertible bond RMB 4,546,000 and investment loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RMB 47,169,000. The total above impact on profit or
loss is RMB 127,547,000.

BE-Z——F - H=1—F I FE A5 W 5
S 2 A N FHE18,099,0007C, B F—RIE
[ A S A K R H537,687,0000T T FE452%.

BME-B——F+ A=+ HIHEE AR
5 Al B R A4 A ]¥E149,772,00070, T2
—FAE R bR AT Bt A N B 55,422,0007T
A4 FE AR B TR 2 B A 2 LU R BR (R RS B A
B FERE IR HAB S N R 57,423,0007T, FEUK
IR R S8 N\ R 7,296,0007C, Hfl FEUC IR
IR AR AL 11,113,0007T, W HRJR A 25 E A6 ls
A A RH4,546,00070, SRS EHKANRK
47,169,0007C, LFF A FH127,547,0007C »
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RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, consolidated turnover
amounted to RMB 18,099,000 representing a decrease of 52%
compared with RMB 37,687,000 of last year. The 2011
consolidated turnover included approximately RMB 2,696,000
was derived from contracted pharmaceutical development services
(PDS) and approximately RMB 13,935,000 from contracted
clinical research services (VPS) .In terms of revenue structure, the
revenue of VPS amounted to 77% of the total revenue, which was
decreased by 48% compared with that of last year. The revenue of
PDS deceased by 38% compared with that of last year and
amounted to 15% of the total revenue. As there was a significant
change in the Chinese Government’s policies and regulations in
drug approval, especially the newly released GMP regulation
(revised in 2010 and effective in 2011), which led to the increase
in rigidity and cautiously in government approval and increased
the timing and risk in new drug development, the total revenue
dropped significantly in 2011.

The overall gross profit margin was 39% representing a decrease
of 18% compared with 57% in last year, which was related to the
drop of revenue and increased weight of cost amortised.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 10 September 2007, Venturepharm Laboratories Limited,
issued bonds of an aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000
(the “Bonds™), which was expired in 9 September 2012. On 4
September 2012, the Bondholders passed the Resolution to extend
the maturity date of the Notes to 10 September 2015 and to alter
the coupon applicable in the extended tenor from 3.5% to 4.0%.

The change in fair value of the convertible bonds during the year
resulted in a loss from changes in fair value of approximately
RMB 4,546,000 in 2011 (2010: approximately RMB 22,193,000),
which has been recorded as “loss on revaluation of convertible
bonds” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately RMB 3,851,000
(2010: RMB 3,422,000) has been recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the convertible bonds for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts and fair value of the

non=current convertible bonds for the Group amounted
approximately of RMB Nil (2010: RMB 108,005,000).

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Company held financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of RMB 60,138,000 as at 31 December 2010 including shares
RMB 55,705,000 and foreign currency bond fund RMB
4,433,000. In 2011, the market price of shares held by the
Company dropped down heavily, the Company had to sell the all
the shares invested and ceased the investment in shares. The RMB
47,524,000 of loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was all derived from disposal of shares.
Since then The Company had adopted more conservative
investment policy and would only invest in foreign currency bond
fund. The Company held financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of RMB 1,803,000 as at 31 December 2011 which
was all foreign currency bond fund..

BUSINESSES STRATEGY CHANGE ON PDS
(PHARMACEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICE)

For the PDS business before 2011, the Company initiated PDS
project when the Company found a market opportunity, invested
capital and other resource to research and develop a drug
technology (including application and obtainment of patent,
Clinical Study Approval and Manufacturing Approval) and sold
the drug technology to customer. Because rigid requirement of
new drug development under recent government regulations, the
Company had to invest more fund and time to PDS project before
it could be sold to customer, and increased the risk of the
Company. In 2011, the Company changed the business strategy of
PDS. The Company had ceased the investment on PDS projects
without customer contract and will start a new PDS project only
after signing a customer contract.

Thus, the Group reviewed the all PDS projects and performed an
assessment on the net realizable value of related work in progress
and trade receivables. The Group recorded a total provision of
RMB 75,832,000 (2010: RMB 24,198,000), including: provision
for impairment losses of trade receivable RMB 7,296,000 (2010:
RMB 9.747,000) , provision for impairment losses of other
receivable RMB 11,113,000 (2010: Nil) and provision for
impairment losses of work-in-progress RMB 57,423,000 (2010:
RMB 14,451,000).

For trade receivables, due to the increasing difficulty of getting
manufacturing approval, some client delayed the settlement of
trade receivables for the early stage of PDS projects. Management
estimated that the recoverability of those trade receivables were
low and accrued provision amounting to RMB 7,296,000 for them.

Other receivable balance represented the prepaid expenditure of
PDS project. As many PDS project was cancelled, the Group
accrued provision for those related other receivables amounting to
RMB 2,379,000.
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For non-contracted work-in-progress, given the non-contracted
PDS projects were ceased, management estimated that the net
realisable values of those work-in-progresses were lower than
book value. And provision for impairment losses amounting to
RMB 32,691,000 was accrued.

For contracted work-in-progress, since the government regulation
became more rigid, the total contract cost exceeded total contract
revenue. And the expected losses amounting to RMB 24,732,000
was recorded as impairment.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING RATIO

During the year, the Group maintained a sound financial position
and prudent liquidity risk management, and had sufficient cash to
meet the need of its business development. As at 31 December 2011, the
Group had current assets of approximately RMB 26,445,000,
among which RMB 6,822,000 was cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had current liabilities of approximately
RMB 134,720,000, among which approximately RMB 15,146,000 of
receipts in advance from customers and RMB106,786,000 of
convertible bond. Most of the receipts in advance would be
recognized as revenue in 2012 and later years, and will not lead to
any cash outflow in future. While the convertible bond, the
maturity date of the bond was extended to year 2015 and hence
there was no cash outflow for the settlement of convertible bond in
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Excluding receipts in
advance and convertible bond, the current ratio (current asset/current
liabilities) of the Group as at 31 December 2011 was 2.1.

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term fund
demand for future development, the Group will consider to raise
funds through bank loans, issuance of new shares, convertible
bonds, and issuance of new debts, etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year, the Group's transactions were substantially denominated in
Renminbi ("RMB"). The Group closely monitors its foreign currency
risk from time to time and will use appropriate hedging when necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Aiming at long-term development and based on its business
transformation strategy of transforming from a leading technology
transfer supplier to an enterprise integrating pharmaceutical
development and products commercialization services, the Group
continued to expand its product lines and accelerate the establishment
of the marketing network so as to rapidly capture its market share.

The Group reviewed the business strategy in 2011 and changed the
PDS strategy. At the same time, the Group has managed to
establish a comprehensive value-added business mode for whole
value chains such as Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API),
Pharmaceutical Development service (PDS), Clinical Research
Service (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) service and post market
service (PMS), thereby enhancing the long-term profitability and
risk resistance capability of the Group.

| VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SALES AND MARKETING

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had signed 51 new
contracts with contract value of approximately RMB 58,304,000
representing a increase of 62% compared to RMB35,974,000 in 2010 as
the Group’s new strategy was accepted by market and customers. Those
contracts will generate stable revenue for the Group.

The Group continued its investment in the enhancement of
marketing capability and the expansion of market network, and
introduced new technologies in the domestic market under the
brand of Venturepharm while striving to establish and expand
overseas markets under the brand of VPS-CRO. During the year,
the Group not only focused on business expansion, but also paid
more attention to the enhancement of brand value and the
improvement of professional capability, aiming at becoming a
comprehensive and reliable technology and service provider with
the most prestigious brand and leading technologies.

CLINICAL RESEARCH SERVICE (VPS)

Taken clinical study as the prime focus, the Group has established
the most integrated service in the country, which provides a series of
services ranging from phase I clinical and bioequivalence studies,
phase II-1II clinical studies, and phase IV post-marketing clinical study,
to data managernent and medical statistics, and medical administration
related service. Meanwhile, the Group makes a great efforts to improve
the professional capability involving the above mentioned services
and has preliminarily established 13 professional research institutions
including Venturepharm-CBI phase I clinical research center,
VPS-mart phase IV clinical research and academic promotion center,
SAS-Venturepharm data management and medical statistics
center, VP-Porsche RA service center, OHH-VP Pacific-Asia
clinical research institution for oncology, TangXi-VP Pacific-Asia clinical
research institution for Diabetes, CNSVP Psychoneurologic and
pain management Pacific-Asia clinical research institution,
CV-VP Cardiovascular Pacific-Asia clinical research center, AIDS
and hepatitis Pacific-Asia clinical research institution, DermNova
Pacific-Asia clinical research institution for dermatosis and
gynecologic disease and TCM-VP clinical research center for
natural drug and traditional Chinese medicine, etc.

In the meantime, the Group has built a nation-wide network with
bases in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou and offices in over 30
provincial capital cities for clinical monitoring and academic
promotion, covering over 80% hospitals which have been authorized
to conduct clinical research. The Group has the capacity of
operating more than 60 phase I and BE projects each year and
conducting 50 phase II-III clinical projects simultanecously.
Meanwhile, the Group is able to carry out 4 phase I'V clinical trials
with large sample size (2,000 subjects) at the same period.

PHARMACEUTICAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICE (PDS)

The changes in the Chinese Government’s policies and regulations
in drug approval, especially the newly released GMP regulation
(revised in 2010 and effective in 2011), led to the increase in
rigidity and cautiously in government approval and increased the
timing and risk in new drug development.
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In 2011, the Company changed the business strategy of PDS. The
Company had ceased the investment on PDS projects without
customer contract and will start a new PDS project only after
signing a customer contract.

PROSPECTS

To capitalize on the opportunity of the increased demand of global
R&D outsourcing market, the Group has made the best efforts to
improve its service capacities and performance in R&D
outsourcing services by providing fully integrated pharmaceutical
services which including Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API),
Pharmaceutical Development service (PDS), Clinical Research
Service (VPS), regulatory affair (RA) service and post market
service (PMS). In the meantime, the Group believes that as the
Government further standardizes and implements its supervision,
the market environment will become more favorable to the Group.
Meanwhile, the investment from Chinese Government into the
scientific research of biologic and pharmaceutical technology will
stimulate greatly to the R&D service market. The upcoming new
booming age of the pharmaceutical industry will not only present
the Group with rare and precious business opportunities, but also
considerable return for the shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has not been any change to the capital structure of the
Company since that date.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Company invested its surplus fund through its principal bank
in investment market, which was RMB1, 803,000.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION MATERIAL

The Group’s remuneration policy is basically determined by the
performance of individual employees. In addition to salaries and
bonuses, employee benefits included medical and pension
contributions and share options schemes.

APPROPRIATION

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 201 1.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year, including the accounting
principles and new and revised accounting standards adopted by
the Company, and discussed matters relating to auditing, internal
controls and financial reporting.

The audit committee confirmed the Company’s actions on
changing the PDS business strategy, reducing staff cost, rental and
other operation cost for more efficiently use of fund and suggested
the company to consider raising funds through bank loans,
issuance of new shares, convertible bonds, and issuance of new
debts and other methods etc when needed.

The audit committee considered providing the impairment losses
on relevant assets in 2011 was appropriate, comply with prudent
principle and reflected current market change, suggested the
company to enhance asset management and make more rapid
response to market on business strategy.

10 | VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. William Xia GUO, is the Chairman, executive Director and
Joint Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Mr. Guo is
responsible for strategic planning and development, overall
management and R&D activities of the Group. Mr. Guo obtained
with a Master degree in science from University of Toronto in
March 1997. Mr. Guo has also completed various approved
courses for the degree of Master of Business Administration in the
Heriot-Watt University. Before establishing the Group in
December 1998, Mr. Guo had worked for two pharmaccutical
companies in Canada, namely Ortho-McNeil Inc. and Novopharm
Limited, both are pharmaceutical companies in Canada as research
scientist and process development manager, respectively. Mr. Guo
has approximately 10 years experience in research, pharmaceutical
development and management in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr.
Guo is a member of the American Association of Pharmaceutical
Scientists and the National Pharmaceutical Sciences Group Inc.

Dr. Maria Xue Mei SONG, is an executive Director. Dr. Song is
responsible for Clinical Research (R&D) and also the head of the
Human Resources Management Department of the Group. Dr.
Song graduated from China Concord Medical University with a
Doctorate degree in clinical medicine in July 1995. She is also a
Registered Pharmacist in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2000, Ms. Song had served as general manager of
Beijing Tiancifu Biopharmaceutical Co. Ltd.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Tao, is nominated as a non-executive Director by C
Tech Fund. Mr. Feng obtained a Master degree in Science from the
Department of Statistics and Applied Probability from the
University of Alberta in June 1992. Mr. Feng has been serving as
the Vice President Officer of The Foundation of Science and
Technology for Development of the State Planning Committee,
State Economic and Trade Commission of the PRC and China
Science Academy since September 1999. He was appointed as
non-executive Director in August 2002.

Mr LI Jin Liang, Master of Business Administration (MBA) of
University of East London. Mr Li is a senior member of British
ACCA (The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants), and
is Certified Public Accountant (CPA) of China's Ministry of
Finance, Asian registered enterprise risk management division
master (CERM) of Asian risk and crisis management association,
and has twenty years experience of accounting and finance. He has
been Chief Financial Officer in Hopson Development Holdings
Limited, Rachel th dafeng group Co., LTD and The European food
import and export Co., LTD.

Dr. Nathan Xin ZHANG, is a non-executive Director. Dr. Zhang is
the former chief executive officer of Chipscreen Biosciences Ltd.,
a leading Chinese biotech company specialized in innovated
cancer, diabetes, and osteoporosis drug discovery. Dr. Zhang had
worked with KPMG LLP and Credit Suisse First Boston. Dr.
Zhang holds an M.D. from Tianjin Medical University, Ph. D from
University of Pennsylvania, and an MBA from the University of
Chicago, USA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Shou Yuan, is an independent non-executive Director and
is the chairman of the audit committee. Dr Wu is the
executive-director of Wisdom MC which is a subsidiary of China
accounting society, and is the director of ASIA CERAMICS
HOLDINGS PLC which is a listing company in British AIM, etc.
Dr Wu graduated from Ministry of Finance with a doctor’s degree,
from Capital University Of Economic And Business with a
master’s degree, and is a senior member of British ACCA, he is
one of the first batch of students of Ministry of Finance (Certified
Public Accounting Series), he has twenty years experience of
accounting and finance.

Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was awarded an MBA from the Columbia University
in May 1985. Mr. Contomichalos had worked for Bristol-Myers
Squibb (BMS). His first position in China was to start up the
consumer over-the-counter business of Bristol-Myers Squibb in
1994. He became Chairman and President of Bristol-Myers
Squibb China from 1997 to 2000. Prior to working in China, Mr.
Contomichalos held various key consumer marketing and business
development positions with Bristol-Myers Squibb in the USA and
Canada and has about18 years of experience in this field. He was
appointed as independent non-executive Director in August 2002.

Dr. ZHANG lJing An, is an independent non-executive Director,
with doctor’s degree of management and graduated from Beijing
Normal University in 1978, and he has extremely rich experience
of management and has deep research in policies and regulations.
Dr Zhang had been chairman of The torch high-tech industry
development center, and chairman of Small and mid-sized
enterprise innovation fund management center, president of
Technology Daily. Dr Zhang is a member of the national
committee of CPPCC, and is the president of CHINA
ASSOCIATION OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY
INDUSTRY PARKS, and is part-time professor or researcher in
Tsinghua University, Peking University,Renmin University of
China, Sun Yat-sen University and Shanghai Jiao Tong
University.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group™) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in

notes 14 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on

page 33 of the annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22
to the financial statements.

Reserve

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 116.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Managing Director:

William Xia GUO

Executive Directors:

Maria Xuemei SONG

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Tao

LI Jing Liang

Nathan Xin ZHANG

Independent Non-executive Directors:
‘WU Shou Yuan

Paul CONTOMICHALOS
ZHANG Jing An
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Company’s Directors and chief executives in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which are required (a) to notify
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have taken under such provision of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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T, BEA B RIRRS LI RIREI X VIS 7 R S e 5 E
WEANE LEEBBEZHIARAT ( T2 ) 2
ME2E IR (IS R o M B I ) S SO
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LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING  RAAAFIG BATMEG 2 178
SHARES OF THE COMPANY
1) The Company §)) AT
Number of
shares in which Number of
interested shares in which
(other than interested under Total Approximate
Type of under equity physically settled number percentage of
Name interest Capacity derivatives) equity derivatives of shares interest
it R T ah
Bty g B (RA AR LRSS il 3 1t £
4 HE 2 05 By fi T RERSM) Hida e ety & B B £ 8 Bk
(Note 3)
(PfRE 3)
William Xia GUO Personal Beneficial owner 9,110,377 9,708,000 18,818,377 5.14
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 149,432 583 — 149,432,583 41.11
Corporation (Note 1)
William Xia GUO Corporate Interest of a controlled 15,966,073 - 15,966,073 4.39
Corporation (Note 2)
HE N =kt ZSPN 9,110,377 9,708,000 18,818,377 5.14
WE gt SERR G R (PR 1) 149,432,583 - 149432583 4111
HH A FTEhEEME (FRE2) 15,966,073 — 15,966,073 4.39

Note 1: The controlled corporation, Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., is 47.63 % directly held by Mr. William Xia
GUO and 49.00 % heild by Mr. William Xia GUO
through Winsland Agents Limited, his wholly and
beneficially owned company incotporated in British
Virgin Islands.

Btatr: 2RI Venturepharm Holdings Inc. H1 #5256
EEEIFA47.63% KB, LI #HE ELEE
Winsland Agents Limited (T-JEfEg i & #E 7l
s, B L T ER) FH49.00%K
B
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Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets
Limited, is 100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm
Holdings Inc.

Note 3: Various interests of the Directors and chief executives
pursuant to physically seitled equily derivatives are
through share options granted under the Pre-IPO share
option scheme.Details of which are set forth as

HAGHA
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Bifiit2: ZFEH)% B Bright Excel Assets Limited £ il BE
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. BRSPS

Miats: #HFRFETEARTEORFRAGLE TR
T2 ZTH 2 75 508 1R A Bk 2\ B B FT A
JRRE R B2 Z IR F 7T GEIFRVATT

follows:

Number of shares in

which interested under physically

settled equity derivatives as at
Name 20 June 2003 and 31 December 2011 Date of grant Exercise price

e e Sy S i ol = 4

Z&F it A =+—H

MR E YR R ARTE TH
e A B E Bt A AT fEfE
William Xia GUO 7,200,000 20-Jun-03 HK$0.32
William Xia GUO 360,000 2-Mar-05 HK$0.52
William Xia GUO 324,000 10-Aug-06 HK$0.36
William Xia GUO 966,000 10-May-07 HKS$0.625
William Xia GUO 858,000 7-Apr-09 HK$0.435
R 7,200,000 —EE=FAHH 0.328%70
WE 360,000 CEFAF=A"H 0.52H5 7L
HE 324,000 ZEREANENA+TH 0.367570
Lie-] 966,000 ZEELFRATH 0.625HETT
I 858,000 ZERBNFENHLH 0.435%E 70

Options granted to Mr. William Xia GUO contain a vesting schedule,
pursuant to which may exercise up to 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2003, up to another 30 % of the underlying shares
after 31 December 2004 and the balance after 31 December 2005. The
relevant options will expire after ten years from the date of grant. Mr.
William Xia GUO has undertaken to the Stock Exchange that he will
not exercise their options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options
Scheme within the first 12 months from the Listing Date
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2) A subsidiary of the Company — Beijing Dezhong-Venture
Pharmaceutical Technology Development Company
Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors and chief executive had any interests or short positions
in any securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
are required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to the rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as it is known to any Directors, chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2011, the interests and short
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed pursuant to Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage of
Name Capacity Number of shares interest
BF5 4 B 3 H 1 o BE 29 45 L
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 1) Beneficial owner 149,432,583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 15,966,073 4.38
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 15,966,073 4.38
William Xia GUO Beneficial owner and interest 184,217,033 50.57
(Notes 1, 2 and 3) of controlled corporations
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Jff i 1) HaMEA A 149, 432, 583 41.10
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. (Fff ¥E 2) 3 95 ] B 1 B g 15, 966, 073 4.38
Bright Excel Assets Limited (Fff 3 2) Eafa A 15, 966, 073 438
;O (B L 283 B A N BT ) A 184, 217, 033 50.57
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company PEAT R AR B e

Note 1: Venturepharm Holdings Inc. is 47.63% directly held
by Mr. William Xia GUO and 49% held by Mr. William
Xia GUO through Winsland Agent Limited, his
wholly and beneficially owned company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands.

Note 2: The controlled corporation, Bright Excel Assets Limited,
is 100 % beneficially owned by Venturepharm Holdings
Inc.

Note 3: Apart from shares held through Venturepharm Holdings
Inc., the interest of 18,818,377 shares comprising of
7,200,000 and 2,508,000 shares underlying the
options granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme
respectively are beneficially owned by Mr. William
Xia GUO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, there was no
other persons who was recorded in the register of the Company
as having interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were required, pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No other contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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2. FdEE Bright Excel Assets Limited 2B
Venturepharm Holdings Inc. B 7 HEH -

M7E3: BRI Venturepharm Holdings inc. 15772 51,
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Share Option Scheme

1. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholder
on 31 March 2003, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) in order
to recognize and reward the contribution of certain Directors,
senior management and advisers, the details of which are set
out in the paragraph head *“Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus. As at 20 June 2003, options
comprising a total of 11,520,000 underlying shares were
granted. As at 31 December 2011 the options outstanding
are 11, 520,000 and no options granted pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. Particulars of the outstanding options that had
been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Schemes
at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

1.
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0 R

B B AT

AATIRBRRT - 2E=F=-A=1—HiB#&z
HMREEFMRETE ( [ERAMERIH
BeHEETE] D, IS E AR TER. SfEH
JE R R, RERSECT G S AR O S0 TR AR
HstE —B. RoFE=FA5A21HH, A48T
L2 i B A 311, 520, 000 AR B 40 - Hif B
RoFE—-—E+H=+—H, 11,520, 0004} B
REMARATHE, ERMEE R ARSI S
H 2 B PR AT O, RRENE R, R F——
FE+ZA=1—H, REE KA SRR
O HE MR B RS IR

Period during Number of

which the options Exercise underlying shares

remain exercisable price per under the option as at

Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2011
HEERE 2 H iR —F A= H

S IN A AR FRATHEE SRR B 2 AR R B E
William Xia GUO (Notes 1 &2) 10 years HK$0. 32 7,200,000
2 other participants (Notes 1 & 2) 10 years HK$0. 32 2,520,000
1 other participant (Note 3) 10 years HK$0. 40 1,800,000
11,520,000

R (MRELE2) 4 0. 32#7T 7,200,000
M4 HAh 28t (REELR2) +4F 0. 32#50 2,520,000
—Z M S0 (HEE3) T4 0. 40475 1,800,000
11,520,000

Note 1: Opiions granted to each of them contain a vesting
schedule, pursuant to which may exercise up to 30%
of the underlying shares after 31 December 2003,
(subject to Note 2), up to another 30 % of the
underlying shares after 31 December 2004 and the
balance after 31 December 2006.

Note 2: Fach of the grantees has undertaken to the Stock
Exchange that they will not exercise their options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 12 months from the Listing Date.

Note 3: Options granted to an adviser contain a vesting schedule,
purstiant to which may exercise up to 30 % of the underlying
shares after 31 December 2002, up to another 30 % of the
undertying shares after 31 December 2003 and the balance
after 31 December 2004. Each of the grantees has undertaken
to the Stock Exchange that they will not exercise their
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options Scheme
within the first 6 months from the Listing Date.
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HfE2:

HE3:

T FHEFTZ SRR P B B B I, IRult, 15
W BE=GE = OB TR
B 17 3092 FEREHE (FEBH 22 IR,
RRPYEF— H =+ — HETE Z MR
HER309%.2 HIREE, RiF_EENFEASH="
— HBETTIE8F T2 A

FARZA IR, KT BRER 12
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B FLE L SRR
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 2 March 2005, options comprising a total of
4,042,000 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2011,, the options outstanding are 880,400
and 3,161,600 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.

HHAGH S
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T

WREAAFABRT - FE=A0 - +=H2 &M@
DRSS Ao TR A — SRR I P

RoTTHE=HAH, SR REIE4, 042,000
[BAH By S, R T ——E+ =+
H, 77880, 4004k i RAT(E, MA3, 161, 60047}
MEREIE A T S o T O pln e e k.
-t A=+ —H, BRARE RS

T

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted

a new share option scheme.

As at 10 August 2006, options comprising a total of
4,118,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2011, the options outstanding are 1, 366, 200
and 2, 751, 800 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
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Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2011
SRR R B2 HME —F 4+ - A=1+—H
SN B AP EIRR fFRATEE i Pl R R 2 A B ity S H
1 participants 10 years HK$0. 45 72,000
72,000
B +4E 0. 45370 72,000
72,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME JER T

RBARAFRBRT “FF=F0A =028
IRFESR, A FIERAN— TR R T E .

PTEENENATH, ORHERA3E4, 118,000
AR e 2 S HE . R ——FE+ A =1—
H, H1, 366, 2000 HAE M ARATE, A2, 751, 800
P i i PEE R 8 2 L 2 B OB LB R i R A

RoF——8+ZA=+—H, HHFREHERET

Particulars of the outstanding options which have been Bz M ARIT ARSI .
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2011are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 2.3.2005 and 31.12.2011
WEEFRFE=A AR
A B IR —F——4#+_HA=1+—H
I NI FFATEHIRR AT JR B B AR I 8 E
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 52 360,000
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 52 374,000
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 52 146,000
880,400
E +4E 0. 52H#E70 360,000
HAh#EY T4 0. 52T 374,000
HAh 2013 T4 0. 52¥57T 146,000
880,400
3. SHARE OPTION SCHEME [ R

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 14 December 2005, options comprising a total of
1,098,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2011, the options outstanding are 72, 000
and 1, 026, 000 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:
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WEAAFRBHET _EF=FAA_+=HzFm
R, AATRE - TEH ARG E.

RE-EFLF+_A+TNHE, CREBEAEL
1, 098, 000 A 8] ft 6y Z i e o 2 —F —— ¢
ZH="+—H, A2 000 REMATE, RE
1,026, 000 7 FRAHE A ARERT B3 H 2 A 1 CL R
SHEURM. B_F——FF+ZA=1+—H, FH#E
BRI B 2 AR AT B E R R T

Particulars of the outstanding options which have been TRz MARAT R T
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2011
FEIRCHE T 2 e H AR —R——F+ZH=1+—H
ZSIN A PAT IR EBAT R SR HE U B AHBH ey 3
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 36 324,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 36 576,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 36 466,200.00
1,366,200.00
HE T4 0. 367G 324,000.00
HAhagd +4F 0. 36¥ 7T 576,000.00
Hihg T4 0. 36T 466,200.00
1,366,200.00
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5. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 23 May 2003, the Company adopted
a new share option scheme.

As at 10 May 2007, options comprising a total of
7,568,000 underlying shares were granted. As at 31
December 2011, the options outstanding are 2, 873, 700
and 4,694,300 options granted pursuant to this Share
Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.

HHGHA
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JE M

RBAAFRRKT —FZ=FHLA - +=Hz &M@
KRR, AN R — SRR E .

REEFLERATH, SRE#REAILT, 568, 000
JEkERR Ay 2 B RE. R F——E+ - H=1—H,

172, 873, TOOLMHE el v ARAT A, AAT4, 694, 300 13
AR AR v 43 o TR O A S R .
SEEF A=A, BRI E

HHEGHL

Pursuant to the written resolutions by the shareholders
of the Company on 25 March 2009, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme.

As at 7 April 2009, options comprising a total of
11,966,800 underlying shares were granted. As at
31December 2011 the options outstanding are
6,998,800 and 4, 968, 000 options granted pursuant to
this Share Option Scheme had been cancelled or lapsed.
Particulars of the outstanding options which have been
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:
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Particulars of the outstanding options which have been Tz AT AR
granted under this Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2011 are as follows:
Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2011
R B A R e H —E——4+-"H=+—H
SN A FAT IR BBATEE FEBCEY B A B Ity B
William Xia GUO 10 years HEK$0. 625 966,000.00
Other Directors 10 years HK$0. 625 732,000.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 625 1175,700.00
2,873,700.00
BE 4 0. 6258 7T 966,000.00
A T4 0. 62570 732,000.00
HoAth 2Bl +H4F 0. 6253 7T 1175,700.00
2,873,700.00
6. SHARE OPTION SCHEME JE bl

WRBAAFABRKT R AE=A-THHZEM@m
RS, RAFRN— IR = .

RoERNENH-EH, CRHEEEIELL 966, 800
MerAB Ry 2 B, R F——FE+ =1+
H, # 6,998,800 {r b my ARAT(L, R0 e hiE
st 2 B RchE4, 968, 0004 B B R L.

BRoF——E+ A= —H, ARt
HEHZ MARATE RS R
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Period during Number of
which the options Exercise underlying shares
remain exercisable price per under the option as at
Name of grantees after the date of grant share 31.12.2011
SRR H R ZEFE——F+=—H=+—H
FRIZNIER Al AT SRR TR T(HAR TSR REYE N KR A B E
William Xia GUO 10 years HK$0. 435 858,000.00
Other directors 10 years HK$0. 435 135,200.00
Other participants 10 years HK$0. 435 5,005,600.00
6,998,800.00
¥iE +4E 0. 435% 0 858,000.00
HAhES 4 0. 435350 135,200.00
Hit2HE 4 0. 4353 7T 5,005,600.00
6,998,800.00

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS WA 5

Details of the discloseable connected transactions during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
busi-ness of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entere
into or subsisted during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or the management
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

BOARD PRACTICE AND PROCEDURES

Since the listing of the Company, the Company has complied
with Board Practices and Procedures as set out in Rules5.46 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Delay in Result Announcement

As the Group needed more time to complete the auditing work,
which specifically includes the following: accounting treatment
of Convertible Bonds, going concern assessment, impairment
of receivables, and impairment of inventories, the publication of
the Result Announcement of the company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2011 was delayed.

TN TR 2 B ER 5 R R AR A T B IR R HE 29,
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation for independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that they are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 39% of the Group’s sales. The
largest customer accounted for approximately 11% of the sales of
the Group.

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 10% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital had any interest in the five
largest customers of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

UHY VOCATION HK CPA Limited was appointed as the
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chairman
William Xia GUO

Beijing, the PRC, 21 March 2013
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1) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company applied the principles and fully complied with
the Code Provision as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules ("CG Code") save with certain deviations in
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n  eEEFRER

23 A A B SR v A5 S B 85 15 P B R K ATl
P E TR RIS ( [REBERERT] D,
B RARORNREE, AR .

respect of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

(2) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Company Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers incompliance
with the provisions that are set out in the GEM Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct for Directors' dealings of securities
since 29 June 2005. Specific enquiries have been made
with all Directors and the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Company
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

2  EBZERXS

ANTE CERAIER BTSRRI FTEAE S, A
AT N HBATRRZ S AT TR, (ERAAT
AoFTHEANA TN EEE R EEF BT
BRI KrelEREE L AMANE, EHMEE,
BEREBE—F - —F T - =1+—HILEEEE,
— BT A ST RIFTEE 2 R

3) BOARD OF DIRECTORS 3) Foe
The overall governance structure of the Company is set out below: AN T RS E s R T
The Board
HEHRE

Chairman appointed by the board
MRS R
2 Executive Directors
2[EATE R
3 Non-Executive Directors
eI TIE S
3 Independent Non-Executive Directors
3f s AT &S

Executive Directors Audit Committee

HiTEs TEEAE
. i 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors

William Xia GUO BT R TS

%E. i Wu Shou Yuan(Chairman)

Maria Xuemel SONG BEIT ()

REH Paul CONTOMICHALOS

Zhang Jing An
T
Note: e
(a) The Non-Executive Directors of the Company during (@) FEHRETFARHEE TR, KLl vz FEEIE#r#
the year and up to the date of this report are: H:
FENG Tao =

WU Xin (resigned on 24 May 2012)
LI Jin Liang (appointed on 24 May 2012)
Nathan Xin ZHANG

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

WANG Hong Bo (resigned on 27 Dec 2011)
WU Shou Yuan (appointed on 27 Dec 2011)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS

WU Ming Yu (resigned on 27Dec 2011)
ZHANG Jing An (appointed on 27 Dec 2011)

BB (F20124F5 ) 24 H BFHF)
Ef?‘%‘ (201245 H 24 HZHT)
')

L A FEAT I BT H S

FALHE (20119125 27 HFHFE)
REIL (2011412 H272T)
Paul CONTOMICHALOS

LHE (20119125 27 BEHTE)
BRRREE (201194612 27 HZFF)
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The Board of Directors ("Board") of the Company is collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of the business
and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
sharcholders value.

The Board of the Company comprises a total of eight Directors,
with two Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. One-third of the
Board is Independent Non-executive Directors and one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications. Reviews are made
regularly of the Board composition to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. All Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in GEM Rule 5.09 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval
and monitoring of the Group's overall strategies and policies;
approval of annual budgets and business plans; evaluating the
performance of the Group; and oversight of management. One of
the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Group. All Directors have been consulted about any matters
proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
Executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receives adequate and reliable
information in a timely manner.

Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance to
give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Six regular Board
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals have been
scheduled for 2011. The Directors can attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association. Board
papers are circulated not less than seven days before the Board
meetings to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary and the Qualified Accountant shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance, accounting and financial matters when necessary.
Directors shall have full access to information of the Group and
are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda, and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. Minutes of
the board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by Directors.
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2011, the
Board met and held Six meetings in January, June,
August, November (twice) and December 2011. The
attendance records of the aforementioned seven Board
meetings are set out below:
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M= —-—F—H. AH. \H. +—H <%
B+ ABTAREH. PRANREEeSeSE2NE
FLSREF LI :

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year

FRENER ERGGRIES

Attendance no. Attendance rate

1R %
Executive Director HTES
William Xia GUO E 6/6 100%
Maria Xuemei SONG REH 6/6 100%
Non=executive Directors JEHATEE
FENG Tao b 6/6 100%
WU Xin Sk 6/6 100%
Nathan Xin ZHANG BRI 6/6 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors B rdefTES
WANG Hong Bo (resigned on 27 Dec 2011) FALH (2011 4F 12 A 27 HEMD 6/6 100%
WU Shou Yuan (appointed on 26 Dec 2011) Sedon (A 2011 412 A 26 HZRD 0/0 0%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 6/6 100%
WU Ming Yu (resigned on 27 Dec 2011) SeHEN CFr 2011 4 12 H 27 HEHMT) 6/6 100%
ZHANG Jing An (appointed on 26 Dec 2011) B (J 2011 4E 12 H 26 HZ(D 0/0 0%
(4)  CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  (4)  FRRATBHER

Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership
and effective running of the Board, and ensures that all
keys and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely and constructive manner.

However, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
has not yet been appointed. Currently, the day-to-day
management of the Company's business is handled by
the executive directors and senior management, who
take the responsibility to run the Group's business and to
implement the Group's strategy so as to achieve the

overall commercial objectives of the Company.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises the
Chairman of the Board Mr. Willlam Xia GUO, a
Non-executive Director Mr. FENG Tao and an
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Paul
CONTOMICHALOS. Mr. William Xia GUO is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company's policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and
reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association,
nomination of Directors is determined by the Board
with approvals by the sharcholders in the general
meeting

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The coming annual general meeting should approve the
appointment of UHY Vocation HK CPA Limited as the
auditors of the Group and that the Board is and be
hereby authorized to fix auditors’ remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
the Company's annual reports and accounts, half-yearly
reports and quarterly reports and internal control system
of the Group and provide advice and comments to the
Board. The audit committee has three members
comprising the three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. WU Shou Yuan (appointed on 26 Dec
2011), Mr. Paul CONTOMICHALOS and Mr. ZHANG
Jing An (appointed on 26 Dec 2011) . Mr. WU Shou
Yuan is the chairman of the audit committee..
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2011, the
audit committee held five meetings and reviewed the
Group's annual report, quarterly and interim financial
results. The attendance records of the aforementioned
five audit committee meetings are set out below:
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BE-F——Ft+H=t—HIb A, #EZE
SEURTRRES WO R ARE TR,
FR AWM B ES. PRRRERER e
JERCSRAS I 1T -

Attendance of individual directors at
board meetings during the year

FEANNEE L EFSSVRFEE
Attendance no. Attendance rate
HRE A HESE
Members R
WANG Hong Bo (resigned on 27 Dec 2011) FALHE (fr 2010 4 12 H 26 HEHE) 5/5 100%
WU Shou Yuan (appointed on 27 Dec 2011) SdHon (742010 5 12 H 26 HET) 0/0 0%
Paul CONTOMICHALOS Paul CONTOMICHALOS 5/5 100%
WU Ming Yu (resigned on 27 Dec 2011) SeBHET (Y 2010 52 12 A 26 HEHE) 5/5 100%
ZHANG Jing An (appointed on 27 Dec 2011) EFL (A 20104F 12 A 26 HEE) 0/0 0%
9) DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF (9) ERERANSANMEREZR]E
THEIR RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge that they take full responsibility W, A AR RER.
in the preparation of the financial statements.
(10)  INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT (10) PO AR B e

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has
a sound and effective internal control system. The Group
is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business
activities and has implemented a practical and effective
control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash
management system and periodic review of the Group’s
operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. The internal control system is reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is effective. The
Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to
it and on its own observations, the present internal
controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board has
conducted review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control and is of the view that the system of
internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2011 is sound and effective. The Group does not have an
internal audit function and the Board is of the view that
there is currently no need for the Group to have this
function.
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3/E., Malaysia Building, 50 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VENTUREPHARM LABORATORIES LIMITED

AL B
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BB P ERAR AR
(7 B 2R SR L Z A FRA )
S P TR W S

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”) set out on
pages 33 to 115 which comprise the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of financial position as at 31 December
2011, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine are necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the content of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis For Qualified Opinion

As detailed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
one of the other receivables of approximately RMB 8,907,000
has been outstanding and only approximately RMB 173,000 was
received by the Group up to the date of this report. The directors
of the Company considered the amount to be irrecoverable and
determined the amount to be impaired in the year ended 31
December 2011. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
approximately RMB 8,734,000 was made and charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2011. Due to the lack of sufficient
independent evidence, and there were no other satisfactory audit
procedures that we could carry out, we are unable to determine
the appropriateness of the valuation of this other receivable and

any excessiveness of the impairment loss

Any adjustments to the figures described above might have a
significant consequential effect on the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2011, loss and the cash
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Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter in relation to the going concern basis for
preparation of consolidated financial statements

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements which indicates that the
Group incurred consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB152,435,000 for the year ended
31 December 2011 and had consolidated net current liabilities of
approximately RMBI108,275,000 and net liabilities of
approximately RMB96,752,000 as at 31 December 2011. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which is dependent on upon the
future funding available, the intention of the Convertible Bond
holders to convert the bonds into Company shares and the
attainment of profitable and positive cash flow operations of the
Group to meet its future working capital and financial
requirements. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that may be necessary should there be no
future funding available and the implementation of proposed
measures to improve the Group’s financial and cash flow

position be unsuccessful.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised at other than the amounts at which
they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In addition, the Group may have to provide
for further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify

non-current assets as current assets.

UHY VOCATION HK CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

David Tze Kin Ng,

Auditor,

Practising Certificate Number P553

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

Year ended 31 December

BE+T_A=1+—-HILFE

2011 2010

_F——Af _E—RA

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B sE ANRETIT ABRHT T

Revenue A 18,099 37,687

Cost of sales BN 5 (11,094) (16,317)

Gross profit EF 7,005 21,370

Other income Hehlr A 6 1,477 21,906

Administrative expenses B 8 (51,314) (46,600)

Tmpairment loss on work-in-progress EEE R EiE 4 16 (57,423) (14,451)

Loss on revaluation of convertible bonds AR B AR 25 (4,546) (22,193)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets HERA R EEEHHEZEROIRE

at fair value through profit or loss, net ZERNEE AR ML A, FHE 20 (47,169) 152

Finance costs — net W — e 7 2,198 (15,606)

Loss before income tax (ERnEy: 5! (149,772) (55,422)

Income tax FrASHE 10 (4,024) (1,838)

Total comprehensive income for the year A TR 25 A0 (153,796) (57,260)

Attributable to: JE -

Owners of the Company AT N (152,435) (56,928)

Non-controlling interests Arfa il (1,361) (332)

(153,796) (57,260)

Basic and diluted loss per share oA A AR 11 (41.85)cents (15.66)cents

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2011

ERE B
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December
wt+—A=1+—H
2011 2010
Rt R
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fisr AR¥TRT AE¥®TT
ASSETS B
Non-current assets AEHiE EE
Property, plant and equipment 2. BRE IR 12 11,523 16,738
New drugs technology TR 13 - -
Deferred tax assets IRFEFTIE S e 15 - 5,340
11,523 22,078
Current assets WiE
Work-in-progress TEEE 16 11,711 58,849
Trade receivables TEYC IR 18 1,436 10,347
Prepayments and other receivables FEA R HoAb ENGER 19 4,673 41,828
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR EEERESTIE £iEE 20 1,803 60,138
Cash and cash equivalents B MBS 21 6,822 6,910
26,445 178,072
Total assets HEEE 37,968 200,150
EQUITY BoRHERS
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company A\ FHEA N\ JE SHlizs
Ordinary shares HeAs 22 38,536 38,469
Reserves FEE 23 (134,972) 16,811
(96,436) 55,280
Non-controlling interests JekshiiEzs (316) 1,045
Total (deficit)/equity B Al AR At (96,752) 56,325
LIABILITIES HfH
Non-current liabilities JesE
Convertible bond EE e 25 - 108,005
Current liabilities mEfaE
Other payables and accruals S A R A~ 24 12,707 31,153
Convertible bond Gk di=e 23 25 106,786 -
Receipts in advance FE R 15,146 3,221
Income tax liabilities FEARTE 81 1,446
134,720 35,820
Total liabilities BIEEGHET 134,720 143,825
Total equity and liabilities B B A A 37,968 200,150
Net current (liabilities)/assets WECE R ERETHE (108,275) 142,252
Total assets less current liabilities RGN A (96,752) 164,330

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013:

FEHEOHN F—-=F=H -+ QR ETEE B T A E AR E
Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG
WHE A REMHEA
Director Director
B HF

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2011

As at 31 December
W+—A=1+—H
2011 2011
R ——tE R4
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
e ARWTRE AR®TT
ASSETS B
Non-current assets e E g
Investments in subsidiaries RET AR ZAE 14 12,813 79,973
Current assets mEhEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEAHEE A A R 19 1,813 7,309
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss e A EE R ROIR - Rl 20 1,803 60,138
Cash and cash equivalents B4 MBS EEY 21 721 53
4,337 67,500
Total assets W 17,150 147,473
EQUITY fra# s
Ordinary shares JeAs 22 38,536 38,469
Reserves et 23 (147,905) (16,628)
Total (deficit)/equity JBCR (sl A At (109,369) 21,841
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities e a
Convertible bond AR 25 - 108,005
Current liabilities MEE
Other payables and accruals HAth BRI FR REA 2 24 1,954 17,627
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAS—F-2A T 24 17,779 -
Convertible bond al R ES 25 106,786 -
126,519 17,627
Total liabilities fafiEasr 126,519 125,632
Total equity and liabilitics FFEERESs R AaEes 17,150 147,473
Net current (liabilities)/ assets FEE R EEE (122,182) 49,873
Total assets less current liabilities S EREE A (109,369) 129,846

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013:
HFHEOR T == A T+ BRI TIEE I th T 5 # AR

Mr. William Xia GUO Dr. Maria Xuemei SONG

WESE REHHE L
Director Director
i #HI

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
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of the year

Attributable to owners of the Company As at 31 December
FRARHANS BE+_A=t—HILLFE
Share- Statutory Retained 2011 2011
based enterprise eamnings/ Non- A i
Share payment Special Capital Statutory  expansion  (accumulaied controlling Total Note RMB000 RMB’000
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve fund Toss) Total interests equity [Qﬁ-%*_il_ ANERT T AE w;‘: I
DA A HEdE  WERMN g8
Bk ZMORE  WHEE  WAER  BEAE  BREE  (RiER GEOE i Cash flows from operating activities RBTER SER
RME‘OU(_) RMB‘W_) RMB’(‘W RMB'@ RME000 RMB’OO? me_' Rm'm Rm’m Rm’m'_] Cash generated from operations MEEEIEA Y B 26 11,656 3,677
ARRTE  ARETX ARETE ARWTRE ARNTx ARWTE ARNTT ARETE ARETE  ARWTR Interest expenses F a7 (4,940) (4,382)
~5_gi Income tax paid FITRFTSTH - 9)
At January 2010 —H—H 34,469 1946 6039 1459 3405 6,986 51,825 111,527 1377 112,904
Net cash generated from/ AETREEE AL
Tota comprehensive RFEATME - - - - - - (56,328) (56928) (332) (57,260) (used in) operating activities (2 B 6,716 (714)
income for the year
Cash flows from investing activities G Bl S
Teansactons with owners HHERR Purchase of property, plant and equipment MR, RN 12 (612) (10,669)
Employee share option benefits  JE SIMRERF - 681 - - - - - 681 - 681 Dividends received Hifu L{f{)\ 106 99
_ _ Payments for the acquisition of financial assets B He s S EEINIE A RIE S (57,577 (166,763)
Toulansuctors ihowners  RFHENZRGTH ) ol ) ) ) ) ) il ) 8l at fair value through profit or loss SRbERE
e ] ] Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—R MR A 2B - 9
r\til:)lcclembﬂz:;]ﬁ ]ﬁij‘H—_ﬁ 38,469 3607 6039 1459 3805 6,986 {5.109) 55,280 1,45 56,325 Proceeds from disposal of property, I R 54 }
= %t plant and equipment WA
- Proceeds from disposal of financial assets RN /N I = LER = Em ol o3 50,585 165,196
Totalcomprehensive AT - - - - - - (1524%5) (152435 (361 (1537%) at fair value through profit or loss 2 EREREZ WA
income fortheyear Proceeds from disposal of new drugs technology HEEFTEE R < N - 5,400
Interest received W H R L 298 265
Transactions with owners BREENER
Isecfordinuyhasupon  FEHRIATRELER  © - - 75 - - - 142 - 34 Net cash used in investing activities P TLE ] 2 4 (7,146) (6,463)
exercise of share aptions
Exercise of share options THE - (84) - # - - - - - - Cash flows from financing activities FEEH SR
Employes shae option benefts i FIBHERF] - 3 - - - - 3T - L Proceeds from issuance of new shares TR S S 342 -
Toultansactonsvibowners  FAFRER AT v » ) = B ) ) i ) s Net cash generated from financing activities SR A B 342 -
At 31 Decernber 2011 PoE—at R 38,536 3920 6,039 1,818 3,803 6,986 (157,538) (96,436) (316) (96,752) . . I
o Net decrease in cash and B MR FETRD (88) (7,177)
cash equivalents
The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. Cash :Tnd_cashfequivalents at the B REEFEYIIOERE 21 6,910 14,087
BB 38 % | SV A BRI« beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end Hi4 RS A e 21 6,822 6,910

The notes on pages 38 to 115 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

GENERAL INFORMATION

Venturepharm Laboratories Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21 May
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands, and its principal place of business is
disclosed in “Corporate Information™ of the annual report.
The Company has its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange™) on 10 July 2003.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi (“RMB’000™) unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 3 March 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) incurred a
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB152,435,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: approximately RMB56,928,000)
and as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets and its total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by approximately RMB108,275,000 (2010: net
current assets of approximately RMB142,252,000) and
approximately RMB96,752,000 (2010: net assets of
approximately RMB56,325,000 ) respectively.

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future liquidity
and performance of the Group and its available sources of
finance in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.

The Group suspended investment in PDS projects without
customer contract on 29 March 2012 to reduce cash
outflows on staff costs, rental and other operating costs.
Cash flows from operating activities of the Group will
maintain a healthy financial position.

On 4 September 2012, the convertible bond holders passed
an resolution to extend the maturity date of the convertible
bond to 10 September 2015 and significantly reduced the
cash outflows for settling the liabilities of the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had current liabilities
of approximately RMB 134,720,000, among which
approximately RMB 15,146,000 of receipts in advance
from customers and RMB 106,786,000 of convertible bond.
Most of the receipts in advance would be recognized as
revenue in 2012 and later years, and will not lead to any
cash outflow in future. While the convertible bond, the
maturity date of the bond was extended to year 2015 and
hence there was no cash outflow for the settlement of
convertible bond in 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. Excluding receipts in advance and convertible
bond, the current ratio (current asset/current liabilities) of
the Group as at 31 December 2011 was 2.1.

Meanwhile, considering the working capital and long term
funding demand for future development, the Group will
consider to raise funds through bank loans, issuance of new
shares, convertible bonds and issuance of new debts.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
convertible bond that are stated at fair value.
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(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
{(Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The arcas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

Impact of new and revised Standards and Interpretations

In current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, the adoption of these new and revised standards
and interpretations has had no material effect on these
financial statements:

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) issued in 2010

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
(Revised)

HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
(Amendments)

HEK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement

HK(IFRIC) Extinguishing Financial
-Int 19 Liabilities with Equity

Instruments
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
staternents of the Company and entities confrolled by the Company
(“its subsidiaries™). Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govem the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting right that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. The Group also assess existence of control
when it does not have more than 50% of voting right but is
able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it
does not have more than 50% of the voting power but is
able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue
of de-facto control.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Profits and losses resulting
from inter~company transactions that are recognized in assets
are also eliminated. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial staternents of subsidiaries (o bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

‘When the Group ceases control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is
lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interests in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost (including any components of other comprehensive income
attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained inferest, with any resulting difference being recognise as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain orloss has beenrecognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
statement of comprehensive income or transferred directly
to retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instuments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a jointly controlled entity.

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (“foreign currencies’)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in statement of comprehensive

income in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.c. Renminbi “RMB”) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to statement of
comprehensive income. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
statement of comprehensive income. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is

reclassified to statement of comprehensive income.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

i Revenues from the transfer of new drug developed
and formulation data are recognised upon transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the compound and
data are delivered to customers.

ii  Revenues from contracted research and development,
pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services are recognised to the extent of the milestone
payments earned in accordance with the applicable
performance requirements and contractual terms and,
where appropriate, as the related costs are incurred.
Payments received that are related to future performance
are deferred and recorded as revenues as they are earned
over the specified future performance periods.

iii Subject to the terms as stated in the technology
transfer agreements and the buyers’ success in
commercialisation of the products to which the
technology transferred is applied, the Group may
receive additional royalty income or profit sharing
income in the future. Should there be any royalty
income or sharing of profit, they will be recognised

when the right to receive the income is established.

iv  Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

v Royalty income on drugs produced by third parties
using the Group’s technical know-how is
recognised when the right to receive is established.

vi Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

vii Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Pension obligations

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to capital reserve. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will continue to be
held in share-based payment reserve.
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2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current and
deferred tax.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period multiplied by the taxable profit. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEGHBEEE &
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11  Property, plant and equipment 211 . BB REE
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the R R, SRITBUTRNE. W
production or supply of goods or services, or for Te s Mg Tt B 1 B o 48 BRI 8 SRR s #E
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated () Ja 48R,
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of e RN R T TE b e E A, PR EARTE
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual AL HE HE IR A, fhsHEH
values over their estimated useful lives, using the SFIR, PIEMBEEMITE A T RG], 3
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual PEATRHMTAT L BB S BANR. W3, 5 Mt
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end JSLA AL T S F 3478
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
estimated useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 5 years FHEYESE b4
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years HEAE KR iy 5—104F
Motor vehicles 5 years R 55
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised W, WEESEEET HEREEEiHZEE
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are TEHAAS € 2 AL AR AT H 4% S5 P SR P VS TERR . 3%,
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any WU Bkt T8 H B M e A 2 ATl Ui 25 B s 4 (i
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an I H 2 1S TS S A AR A M 2 E5ERT 5D
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as FARETH B BUEHERE T NIR A .
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

212  Work-in-progress 212 FEER

Work-in-progress is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, cost of development
including costs that have been incurred for the provision
of pharmaceutical application, registration and testing
services, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Work-in-progress (Continued)

‘Where the outcome of a pharmaceutical development and
clinical research contract or service can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the
reporting date, as measured by the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear to
the total contract costs or the proportion that contract
revenue billed or recognised for work performed to date
bear to the total contract sums, whichever is the lower,
except where this would not be representative of the stage

of completion.

Where the outcome of a contract or service cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable that
they will be recoverable.

When it is probable that the total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial

recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information

about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other income line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Fair

value is determined in the manner described in note 3.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables and
other receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— Disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets(Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 90 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. When a trade receivables and
other receivables is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
statement of comprehensive income.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through statement of comprehensive income to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

2011 4 W
ANNUAL REPORT
BE_F—Ft A= HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HESFBURHE &)

SMTE &)
SMAE D
SRR EZIRE (D

SR T RS 2 AR 2 SR (] i
SO M5, & HATHRERIEE SR, BYGK
TRAR B (E <« Zr Blae iR v A AR ok 4 B
BERE (R ZMAERENREE Z8m. FH
R IREIIAR N 2 S el E AL S B

AL O R AS R SR AT, FrRlEsE I8
TR R R P WIR T Bt e ¥ PR
I AMa DRSS ER AW H L E8H .

RERAI R SREEN S, WERAZ SHREE
A WREME S AT SR E B AT Z 5 BRI
it AR SR ETUE 2 ZHEHE. FRMRERKH
G AR R R

BT SR E A REIRR G BT SRE E L
BRI P AT B B 5 AR B H A 3R I
ZWREME S ARAE AN RN IR E
BEHEr AT HER . BB SRR A EGK
TEHAR A AU IR, LR AR A MSH. Z AT
SN R R R, AR A

BHAECHBARA S R SRBETT S, AWERERIIH],
AR E WD, A BR8] T SEHER R e
RRBBEZBIER, RS OB ZIRERRE
FiiE T ORI, MR A R E R B H 2 bR
IME A BRI AR IR (E G 2 LR A

BEemMuEXARAAIG



213

2011 4 B # W

R I B BRI T

ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE Rt H=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis .

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liabilities are either held for trading or it is those
designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis aderivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognised in statement of comprehensive income
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities including other payables and
accruals and income tax liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Convertible bonds

Conversion options that are not seftled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of equity instruments are recognised as financial
instruments carried at fair value through profit or loss.

On initial recognition, the convertible bonds with the
derivatives component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The
entire convertible bonds are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of issue and are subsequently measured
at fair value until extinguished on conversion or
redemption. Changes in the fair value of the entire
convertible bonds are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as they arise. Interest on
convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is included in the fair value

gain or loss for that period.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible bonds designated as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised
and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in statement of
comprehensive income. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of
the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement
of comprehensive income.

‘When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or
loss, only if terms are substantially different, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EHEEHBOREE &) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEGHBOREE #)
POLICIES (CONTINUED) POLICIES (CONTINUED)
214  Cash and cash equivalents 214 BE&EBLSSEY 2.16  Provision (Continued) 216 % &
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash s ReRERNE, RERESSEYRIETE Where there are a number of similar obligations, the WL IREMRT, RERME Rk el
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand B4 B Afea, CURBENRIE R A =8 H WFH, likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is BRERGERN A e, B ST b
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid ] e R O A e FEIR £ R R S IR A BB A determined by considering the class of obligations as a EHT S, @R REMIRIR, [ZArERER .
investments that are readily convertible into known D ARG AR, SRR I H AR AR R whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of SN B R TIE . an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally same class of obligations may be small.
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part Provisions are measured at the present value of the LB AIT R W BT, R ERS TS
of the Group’s cash management. expenditures expected to be required to settle the S e i ) (EE A AH B B AT RS B RS a2 Fr el
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market FIZSH B EAR ., FEie R n g B fe i se
For the purpose of the statement of financial position, MMBERRENS, RekRESSEYNETFERSE assessments of the time value of money and the risks AR R E.
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at FRATA A ST ima. UAEERUBEN & specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in B, HABAZRE. due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
2.17  Related parties 217 FEE AL
2.15 Share Capital 2.15 B (a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (a) FALHEZATRIEBF S LU TSR, RELRER
related to the Group if that person: .
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. T el 1) A
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; (1) FehektEEm A4
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new HRE AT R e R B | B i e AR 2 T
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net BT IEZ > GRRERIE) (ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) ¥ AEEEEFE, o
of tax, from the proceeds.
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of (ii1) ZAAREFEEAERFARMFEEIAR.
2.16  Provision 216  HE the Group or the parent of the Group.
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EAREEBBR S EAT e el E ST, I b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following  (b) i FAUTAARAESEE, B SR AL B A .

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses. Provision for an onerous contract is
recognised when the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received. The unavoidable costs
under a contract reflect the least net cost of existing from
the contract, which is the lower of the cost fulfilling the
contract and any compensation or penalties arising from
failure to fulfil the contract.
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conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a Group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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(iii) RZ B HSUASR B A4 R — W0 1y e ) A B R 3R
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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3.1

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD™), United
States Dollars (“USD”) and Swiss Franc (“CHF”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. In
addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Government.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of
the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk also arises from certain
financial assets and convertible bonds which are
denominated in HKD, USD and CHF. The Group
currently does not hedge its foreign exchange exposure.

At 31 December 2011, if HKD, USD or CHF had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against Renminbi
with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss
for the year would have been increased/decreased
approximately RMB1,042,000 (2010: approximately
RMB1,759,000).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B ()
31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERE 3D
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T R ()

(1) Interest rate risks

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. The Group’s interest
bearing borrowings are issued at fixed rates and
exposed to fair value interest rate risk. The details of

the Group’'s borrowings are disclosed in Note 25.

(iii) Price risks

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value through profit or loss. The Group has not
mitigated its price risk arising from investments in
securities financial assets.

For the Group’s investments that are publicly traded,
the fair value is determined with reference to quoted
market prices. For the Group’s investments that are
not publicly traded, the Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the reporting date.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MERBREE #)
31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERE @)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T e (D
(iii) Price risks (Continued) (iid) Rk RS (40
At 31 December 2011, if the market prices of these BoFE A=+ H, mEFEREE
securities financial assets had increased/decreased i/ T ER10% (LAR P AR, KAEMEAKFR
by 10% with all other variables held constant, &R0 LU ).
Group’s post=tax loss for the year ended would have
been changed as follows:
2011 2010
R R -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥TT
Post-tax loss increase/(decrease) FHAR SRS/ ()
- Market prices increased by 10% — i Lk 10% (180) (6,014)
- Market prices decreased by 10% —THiE F ¥ 10% 180 6,014
(b) Credit risk ®) 1 F JaFa

The Group’s credit risk arises from trade receivables and
bank balances.

For the sales of products to third party customers, there is
a concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the largest five customers contribute
around 96% (2010: 64%) of the balance. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that credit is only granted to
customers with an appropriate credit history and a good
reputation. The exposure to credit risk is closely

monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B RsEE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B R B e (ﬁ)
31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 WMHERR &3 31  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 MERR @)
(©) Liquidity risk (© st A ©) Liquidity risk (Continued) @© B RS (4D
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining FH B R E AT T & RRT A
sufficient cash and bank balances. The liquidity of the 2, ARAEFERE LS LI LR T, Company AT
Gr(ljupk ?s ad;qu‘.ately :ane}llg_e: | and .1 r;l;)nitored ?y ERBE AL EAFEERE N ER. At 31 December 2011
maintaining sufficient cash, which is available to meet its _ -
continuousg operational needs. In the opinion of the —Fe R AT
_ o o Less than Between 1 Between 2
ci-lrectors, the Group does not have any significant liquidity 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
risk. A 4 1-24¢ 2-5 4 At
¥ 2 £ 4
The table below analyses the Group’ s financial liabilities TNRERIRE RS RE ORI, #2850 A‘;M;:;: A‘;Mﬁ::g;g AI;“BL?:;)(;—: A];M;::g—:
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining MR E S EE . HESES SRS
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. fito
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual Convertible bond TRREDE 107,715 ) ) 107,715
undiscounted cash flows. Other payables and accruals bl AT 32 e A 2 1,025 - - 1,025
Amounts due to subsidiaries TEAT 4R 17,779 17,779
At 31FDecember 2010
Group A 5 [ “R-BEFH=E+H
Less than Between 1 Between 2
At 31 December 2011 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—F——Ft+- A=A DA 1-24F 254 s
Less than Between 1 Between 2 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Iyear  and2years  and 5 years Total AR¥Tr AR¥®TT AR®TT AR¥®TxH
WS ES 124 254 &t
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB000 Convertible bond AR - 108,005 - 108,005
ARBTE  ARETLE  ARETLE  AR&ETT Other payables and accruals Lt A S B ) 2 17,627 - - 17,627
Convertible bond DIESgizes2 107,175 - 107,175 32 Capital risk management 32 BEARBEH
Other payables and accruals HoAh R AT H 12,707 - - 12,707
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to 2 [ P T L T H B A R AR, IRR ]
At 31 December 2010 safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going AR A HABMR N, A B p ik B F AR (R Rr
—E-BFLTA=1—H concern in order to provide returns to the shareholders ANgE,
Less than Between 1 Between 2 and benefits for other stakeholders. The Group’s overall
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Total strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
IR 124 2-54 et
RMB*000 RMB*000 RME"000 RMB’000 The capital structure of the Group represents equity AEFEARGEERREA TR RE SR, HOHE
ARMTIE  ARETT  ARETIT  ARETT attributable to owners of the parent, comprising issued SN AR A A
share capital and retained earnings.
Convertible bond GIE e - 108,005 - 108,005
Other payables and accruals HAt AR AT 31,153 - - 31,153
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholders or issue new shares.

RIRFFEHEE VAR, AR AT AR A A SR A
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 PR (8D 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BE R EE 80
33 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AnEEMER @ 33 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AREERE &
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at MREEAEEAMTERA AEEANRNSETR, AF If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on i — a2 AR TR S T R R AT
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have JBE RS observable market data, the instrument is included in HIEZTa T B Eaas,
been defined as follows: level 3.
— Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — [FHEE E sl AR R GRS Specific valuation techniques used to value financial FHA B R T B A8 AT R A R T e
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (€ DN instruments include:
— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — ER A TAEHIRRIES, RIBTBISEE ( Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for . SRR & i B FR LR H3R .
level 1 that are observable for the asset or R i (BENVRE{ERE) 28mEs similar instruments.
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or B ERAR GF2) .
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). . Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow R HAb BT L HAr R TR 2 A R fE
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the 1, BB M.
— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based — AEARE ] RnniGEusr g E el B E (BIRE remaining financial instruments.
on observable market data (that is, unobservable ERS (D .
inputs) (level 3). There were no level 3 financial instruments for the year AEEPEE-F—F A=+ —HILFEERE
ended 31 December 2011. FEIT A ED.
All of the Group’s financial instruments are included in AEEP - —— R - A =1+—Hl
level 1 as of 31 December 2011 and 2010. SR TR UL Fo BB 5 A R 4 3 (S8R & The following table represents the changes in level 3 TREFAEBOEHITARBE —F—FF 1=
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2010. H="1—HILFRERsEE).
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active THEETESEE 2 & TR A RHESESFE H TR
markets is based on quoted market prices on the reporting M. R TR E 2L BT, 385,
date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are ian, EREE. wHEHRpHRERETREES, H Total
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, IR E AT ER EE e LTS S, BT Mmet
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory B ATERETE . REFFRESRE E 2 T RES RMB’000
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly ERENE. BT REREASFHLP. ANER#TIT
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by Opening balance A 3414
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are Exchange difference ICHER (103)
included in level 1. Impairment WiE (3,311)
Closing balance BIR A0 -
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded G EETTS E B 2 Sl T 2 A B S A Total losses for the period including in profit or PR AR A B E
in an active market is determined by using valuation {FFIEIERT o AR DAL PR o P aT AR A loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period I8 T S R (3,414)

techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all

ATBURTGE R DL AR R 2 ) R e Al
HIHHEFEE . WRARMAE T HIMERAFAEES
ELETTIERN), T RSS2

significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
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(a)

Critical Accounting Judgements And Key Sources Of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The Group provides for impairment of receivables based
on an assessment of the collectability of trade and other
receivables. Provisions for impairment are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and doubtful debt expense in the period in which such

estimate is changed.
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(b)

(©

(d

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of work-in-progress

Provision for slowing-moving work-in-progress is based
on the aged of the respective project and the
accomplishment of certain stage of milestone during the
process of development. The assessment of the provision
amount involved management judgement and estimation.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the carrying value of work-in-progress and provision
charge/write-back in the period such estimate changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines that the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimation is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions. Depreciation charge
will be reassessed where useful live is different from the
previous estimation, or it will write-off or write-down

obsolete assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax provision
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilized. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

(®)

(c)

(@
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(e)

®

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of
estimation uncertainty (CONTINUED)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of property, plant and equipment is reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on fair value less costs to sell
calculations or market valuations. These calculations

require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset value
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell or net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of the operations.

Fair value of convertible bond

The Group makes reference to the independent valuer’s
valuations to determine the fair value of convertible bond
at fair value through profit or loss which in turn are
determined using a valuation technique, the Monte Carlo
Simulation Model. Judgment is required in the
calculation of such valuation. Changes in the underlying
assumptions  could materially impact other

comprehensive income and profit and loss, respectively.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION BEWNFSEER
Breakdown of the revenue from all services is as follows: N BHAR IO«
2011 2010
R “EB B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETT ANRET T
Analysis of revenue by category 1PN ]
Contracted clinical research services (VPS) B H BB P B B R ST R 13,935 26, 755
WA — A58 P He 1A
Contracted pharmaceutical development B %) BE My B 4 B RO R 2, 696 4,316
services (PDS) W A — A4 B 3T
Import registration services (IRS) L R R B 1,439 1,013
Royalty income L AR TN - 5, 400
Sales of active pharmaceutical ingredients S A R 1 A R SR A 29 203
products (API)
Total &t 18, 099 37, 687

Turnover and contribution to profit from operations by
segment has not been presented as over 90% of the
Group’s turnover was derived from the pharmaceutical
research and development, registration, application and
testing in the PRC and all assets were located in the PRC
for both years.

Information about major customers is as follows:

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as

F A A SR i 9 0% 2 25 SRR A 1 L B2 B
Wrgk, REM. FPEELARBE, IR RO R A
ERETMIATEE, A 252 SRR AR
HRZ 884

AR EEEF ¥k

FHRBREEBEAR B % 5 2 a5 A SR B AR S A1 0% LA
ZHEATF

follows:

2011 2010

CF A TR B

RMB’000 RMB’000

AT AR®TIT
Customer A FA 2,035 -
Customer B =R - 5,400
Customer C EFC - 4,500

BeMUEEXARAIAITS
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 HAbA
2011 2010
R A “E—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT T NG T
Government subsidies T EED 1, 348 1,077
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets A SUEEEES R SR (487 19, 666
at fair value through profit or loss e 2 A SR B () Mk
Dividends income zilleN 106 331
Compensation income HEE 362 632
Gain on disposal of property, B, R RS2 GEE 54 -
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) H A — i B =) S (P aE2T) - 162
Others HAth 94 38
Total ot 1, 477 21, 906

During the year, the Group received approximately
RMB1,348,000 (2010: approximately RMB1,077,000)

of government subsidies towards the research and

development projects.

A AHE B A A R i R U R B A R
1, 348, 00070 (—#E—2=g. AR 077, 00070) .

B Er B IR
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7 FINANCE COSTS - NET 7 MHW A&
2011 2010
—EFE g A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANE¥ET T ANEW¥T
Finance costs: AR EH
- Exchange losses —RESRR R - (11, 458)
— Interest expenses —FBBZ (4, 940) (4, 382)
- Others — oAt (74) 3D
(5,014) (15, 871)
Finance income: TAFEAN -
- Exchange gains —MEfeias 6, 914 -
— Interest income —F| BN 298 265
7,212 265
Finance costs — net W E M - 3R 2,198 (15, 606)
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8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 B AHE
Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative BENASE BT T
expenses are analysed as follows:
2011 2010
—F——AF 2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT NEHETTT
Depreciation (Note 12) i (fEEL2) 2,584 3, 598
Amortisation of new drugs ERE A TR - 2,341
technology including in #sE (PHEEL3)
administrative expenses (Note 13)
Auditor’s remuneration T’atEH 780 1,153
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) JEEARRITEA (M) 19, 547 17,898
Compensation HEAE 3,503 682
Operating lease payment BUBRIENH 2,045 2,492
Provision for impairment loss TR (i 7,296 9, 747
of trade receivables (Note 18) (PE18)
Impairment loss on property, WEYEE, W AR 3,243 -
plant and equipment (Note 12) WAEER (fREL12)
Impairment loss on financial assets fa A R EEEBHE R - 10, 185
at fair value through profit or loss Z R R EER (HEEL2)
Impairment loss of new drugs BEBTRERR  (PHREL3) - 4,210
technology (Note 13)
Impairment loss on other HipEEGIIRmREIRL  (FFEEL9) 11, 113 -
receivables (Note 19)
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9 JE B EFISTH
2011 2010
S S —F—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABREETIT NE¥TIT
Wages and salaries TEKHSE 15, 682 14,550
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BAKERET B4R 3,235 2411
Employee share-based payment JE B A A R 377 681
Other staff benefits HAih 253 256
Total C 19, 547 17,898
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9 BEBEAITH #) 9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9 JRERATH @)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) WH LS EEM S (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) T4 A+ (48
. . h=x v, |5 I
I . . R an The emoluments of each of the five highest paid 144 B e R B 2 N G LIRS 1, 000, 0007T.
Directar’s fee Salaries and bonus Provident fund contribution ~ Employee share-based payment Total employees are less than RMB1,000,000.
% CRWE B TR EE R4 “EBE R f "R BFE —FF -2 B
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 ‘ »
ST AN AT OARNDS AOANR AN AN AT Duing b you, 1o codumens wer peid by heGemp - JASFIEA, MBIUK L USRI LK
t0 any directors of the Company or the five highest paid BN LS FHERTRN G, 525N AT A S 2
wE - - 558 506 - - as 51 606 557 individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the B, BUfEAREERAEE, MR ERAENERE
William, Xia GUO .
peme - - " po » - m " o o Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the {4
Maria, Xue Mei SONG directors has waived any emoluments in the year.
e - - - - - - 6 6 6 5
Tao FENG
P Z Z Z Z Z Z P P P p 10 INCOME TAX 10 FrigsREH
Xin WU
iﬁm i ZHANG - - - - - - ¢ ¢ ° ¢ No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as P 2B [ A B TN S A TR AR AT ] AR A,
S () 30 30 - - - - - 5 30 35 the Group had no estimated assessable profit generated in WP R FHE RS E M (BT /) .
Ming Yu WU (note 2 Hong Kong for the year (2010: Nil).
Paul CONTOMICHALOS - - - - - - 7 8 7 8
Paul CONTOMICHALOS
f?ﬁ;ﬁB [Eﬁﬁi b oen - - - - - - - 8 - 8 PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been calculated on the B A SE TS AR T AR T BAH R R BRI .
p——— - - - - - B B B N estimated assessable profit for the year according to the ZE -t A=t HREA RS RRES
Shou Yuan WU (oot b relevant laws and regulations. The applicable income tax 15%-25% (“FE—FF: 25%) . BARER, JLEsE
o A T i) - - - - ) rate is ranging from 15% to 25% as at 31 December 2011 LRI RAR, A B
ot 6w w w0 . P (2010: 25%). During the year 1L 3R 4 27150 AR, R EERRRARAT, JovER
Total ' PREEATRAT], dbr s e BRI EAIRAR], db B A REEREE AT IR A A A BRHE AR TR A
Notes. - HE2ECEESRTARAR, LR ER S RER H BT E R F s AR A S T 5L R B A3 AT
o ' HAHBRAR and  MHIEVRLEARIEIZEE  bave AR A%,
a. The directors were retired on 27 December 2011, a. HHF20114F127 27 H BB applied to the PRC tax authority as High-tech Enterprises
b. The directors were appointed on 26 December 2011. b. HEHET20114E12 H 26 H FF=A4T- and subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 15%.
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) TG A L The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated fEOamlEE R R ETAER E I
statement of comprehensive income represents:
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in FEBEEFEMALOFE —8 (ZF—FF. —8)
the Group for the year included two (2010: two) directors AAEE . AR EEARTE O . Hig=
. . _ . N 2011 2010
whose emolument are reflected in the analysis presented % (CEERE =4 ZMEeT: g g —m
above. The emoluments payable of the remaining three - , —
(2010: three) individuals during the year are as follows: RMB’000 RMB 0(1)
AREET T PN T
2011 2010 PRC enterprise income tax o [ £ 22 A
[ Y —® B — current year — AR 81 1,455
RMB’000 RMB’OOO - over—provision in prlOI years - l;’-ﬁﬁ$f£iﬁf£?§f% (1,397} (1,997)
L S AT Deferred taxation (Note 15) TEIERIE (BfHE1S) 5,340 2,380
Salaries and allowances s FERy 2,461 910 N
Total A%t 4,024 1,838
Employee share-based payment B TRA T 111 86
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRI =t 81 51
Total &5t 2,653 1,047
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10 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10 FristeE N () 1 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11 EATBEERESR @&
(CONTINUED)
The tax on the Group’s loss before tax differs from the LI AT s tE e mte | A2 1 Fr S i B DA R B R
theoretical amount that would arise using PRC Enterprise 2T Rt 2 M AR AE 2 R B (b) Diluted loss per share(Continued) ) Tl s A (4E)
Income Tax rate as follows:
TV 3010 The calculation of the diluted loss per share for the year is T TR R A 5T AL TR A N A 2 =] 3 A B TR
g —x based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity o TR IR R AR 2 AT A S . I R
_.RMB 000 _-RMB’OOO shareholders and adjusted to eliminate the interest SEHRRHA53, 144, 000k ( —F—ZF4F: 463, 447, 000
U RT3 expense less the tax effect. The weighted average number B . EEUHATEE B AR RE ST 3 T 152 H AR R
L L of approximately 453,144,000 (2010: approximately o T 45 AR 2 TR T TR AT A 0 S AR B R A
e 463,447,000) ordi h after adjusting for the effect 88, 928, 000 ( —=F—=4E: 99,935, 000 %
Loss before tax BT (149, 779) (55, 422) g )© t"a:iyls H:S e‘: ’ust ';ge o Zf fhc P ﬁ " ;ﬁi i o
Calculated at a tax rate of 15% BLISHE SRR (22, 466) (13, 856) otthe dliufive potentia’ arcinary shares fo be Issnec fothe $ ;
(2010: 25%) (—Z—BlE. 25 %) exercise of the options granted under all relevant Share
T . L : Option Schemes and the conversion of convertible bond
Effect of differential tax rate b ~ [ 2 ) 9, 394 10, 106
o erefl_ . RS RIT RS as detailed below of approximately 88,928,000 (2010:
of overseas entities imately 99,935,000) shares, calculated as follows:
Over-provision in prior years BRI S (1, 397) (1,997 approxumately =559, ares, OHOWS:
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AHEREF G H - 985 o1 5570
Derecognition of previously [5G B RERR Y 5, 340 4,377 B B )
recognised deferred tax assets TR AERRTE Y e =% T(Il?:) _‘ing;fo
Expenses not deductible for AR 13,153 2,521 - -
taxati ANEHT T ANE¥TIC
xation purpose
Others Rt - (298) Loss attributable to owners AAF A NE SR (152, 435) (56, 928)
of the Company
Taxation ASERF R E R 4,024 1,838
Interest expense on convertible TR AR R (B 3,851 3,422
11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 11 EERBWERER bond (net of tax)
@) Basic loss per share @ A R Loss used to determine diluted FECLG A s i Y 4R (148, 584) (53, 506)
earnings per share
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss R E AR BRI E T E A A T AR R ) .
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted JE G TR R AR P AR E ] B T R P R Weighted average number of CLFT HR AT 364,216 363, 512
. . . ordinary shares in issue (thousands) T
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the N
years Adjustment for: ek,
— Effect of deemed issue of ordinary bicS i NGl e AR 88, 928 99, 935
shares under the Company’s Share R AE SR A T A TH R AR A
2011 2010 . . P .
e e e Option Schemes and the conversion ATHERIRE (TR
- - of convertible bond (thousands)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHET T ARIET I Weighted average number of ordinary AT S A 2 E 453, 144 463, 447
Loss attributable to owners AT HEA NE S EHEERMB” 000) (152, 435) (56,928) shares for diluted earnings per share RS (TR
of the Company (RMB” 000) (thousands)
Weighted average number of B TR (TR 364, 216 363,512 . ) N . .
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%‘#ﬁﬁﬂﬁbﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ, T
December 2011 and 2010 is presented as the assumed AR R B I SUE R, BORESIEE —F
Basic loss per share (RMB cents per share) A S BB AT B O\ L AR (41. 85) (15.66) conversion of convertible bond would result in a decrease ——E R FE-FE+ A =+—HILREEE 2 &
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

Wik WiE B — ARl

Fra BT
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Leasehold Machinery and
improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
FHERMESEE  HRaS R FH &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AT ARMEFT ARWTT ARWTT

At 1 January 2010 RE-F—RF—H—H

Cost i %N 5,232 14,667 1,010 20,909
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (2,683) (7,722) (836) (11,241)
Net book amount R A 2,549 6,945 174 9,668
Year ended 31 December 2010 R _F—FF+_H=+—H

Opening net book amount e 1 T B AT i e 2,549 6,945 174 9,668
Additions A 363 10,306 - 10,669
Written off ey - Q) - @)
Depreciation (Note 8) e (FRHES) (1,124) (2,364) (110) (3,598)
Written back [ 48§ - 6 - 6
Closing net book amount TR T B AR R 1,788 14,386 64 16,738
At 31 December 2010 R-F—FF+_H=1+—H

Cost JAR 5,595 24,966 1,010 31,571
Accumulated depreciation BRI (3,807) (10,080) (946) (14,833)
Net book amount B EE EEE 1,788 14,886 64 16,738
Year ended 31 December 2011 B —F——%+_H=+—H

Opening net book amount PRI THE AR AR A 1,788 14,886 64 16,738
Additions ARSI - 612 - 612
Disposals Ay - (593) (187) (780)
Depreciation (Note 8) e (BfHES) (205) (2,379) - (2,584)
Impairment (Note 8) AE (FTES) (1,319) (1,868) (56) (3,243)
Wiritten back Ik - 593 187 780
Closing net book amount PRI THE I AR AR A 264 11,251 8 11,523
At 31 December 2011 R-F—F+—_HA=+—H

Cost JA 5,595 24,985 823 31,403
Accumulated depreciation Bt A (5,331) (13,734) (815) (19,380)

and impairment
Net book amount i 0 264 11,251 8 11,523
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13 NEW DRUGS TECHNOLOGY - GROUP 13 PR — AR
RMB’000

ANRHETIT
At 1 January 2010 R_F—FF—H—H
Cost A 22,058
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 FHHEEH & I {E (12,684)
Net book amount MR HE. 9,374
Year ended 31 December 2010 R-Z2—EF+—-RA=1+—H
Opening net book amount R AT ES A FT R 9,374
Amortisation charge (Note 8) AHNERES (FfTE8) (2,341)
Disposal M (2,823)
Impairment (Note 8) AHHAE (4,210
Closing net book amount WRTAT R EL I A BR A -
At 31 December 2010 N_B—FF+_H=+—H
Cost AR 18,352
Accumulated amortisation and impairment  EFHEES A IR (E (18,352)
Net book amount MR FHE -
Year ended 31 December 2011 w-_g—H+_H=1+—H
Opening net book amount W T T AR i R -
Amortisation charge (Note 8) AR (fs) -
Disposal IR (L,671)
Wiritten back A [m 43 1,671
Closing net book amount R T P A AR B -
At 31 December 2011 W_F—F+_H=1+—H
Cost A 16,681
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 I (16,681)

Net book amount

RTAHE -

The new drugs technology included above have finite
useful lives, over which the assets are amortised. The
amortisation period for development costs incurred on
the Group’s new drugs technology is five years.

No  amortization  charges  (2010:  approximately
RMB2,341,000) is included in the “administrative
expenses” during the year.

P 2 AR N B AT PR R, TR B
I BlSs . A2 MHT L ST P e B aE A 2
MM,

AEEGAEEEA ., 8 RTHNEFAHAN
FeHE2,341,00000, 78 MEHEH) $¥IR.
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —- COMPANY 14 Fit G A BT 25 — A=A ] 14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —- COMPANY 14 MR AT — AAT ()
(CONTINUED)
2011 2010
—F = ;3—'3515 Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
RI\([B’()(!_(.I RMB 00_(_) and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
ARBET I ARHETIC registered capital
i INF -
pnlisted shares, a cost anliacias 20374 o0am AR EETAA S A LA BT i it
ess: provision for impairment e IREER (29,646)
728 30, 374 HEff A
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 17) REWC IR~ mIKIE  (FEELT) 49,587 49, 599 Shares indirectly held by the Company:
Less: provision for impairment P BHERK (37,502) - AT R B A -
12,085 49, 599
Total it 12,813 79,973 b RiE R B L 2E Y E HTHH%E  Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$865,000 94.512%
AIRAT] Limited liability company development of new
The cost of the unlisted shares is based on the book value e BT 2 AR ) R AR A B A A B A H drug preparation, raw
of the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries attributable o B BB R AR B M E 2 IR T E R . materials, supplementary
to the Group on the date of the Group Reorganisation. materials and biodrugs
technological transfer
The amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current M S N vl EH e AR G B, I E AT and services
assets are unsecured, interest-free and considered equity R4, B A s e .
in nature.
U R B B iy FrEgE R, 5T N B R 2R A 865,00037C 94.512%
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at AT - EFE AN R -FF A =+—H BB PR ] ARFLAT JEA e RN AR
31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 2 EEH A TREE LR R SRy &
PN BEGE R
lilFecs
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity ISSl..led share C?lplta.lf interest Held - Hanzhong, the PRC, Sales and manufacturing US$600,000 51%
registered capital L. o . .
AHRAE Limited liability company of active pharmaceutical
NSIE RSS2 IN FEAY ELBE TR FIF b2 ingredients products
EEf A
Shares directly held by the Company: E*EHEQE%%I i EEP . %Eﬁﬂjﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ 600,000537% e
HRAT ARFAEAT FRA3E i
AN R EHERA B
Venturepharm Laboratories British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$100 100% VPSCRO Group Inc. British Virgin Islands, Inactive Us$1 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)") Limited liability company Limited liability
company
Venovo Pharma US Inc. British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), Investment holding US$1 100%
Limited liability company VPSCRO Group Inc. BB LHEE, ([BVI) Pt ES 100%
IR TR ]
Venturepharm Laboratories R R ( TBVI) ) ERIE 100 7C 100%
(BVI) Limited (“VP (BVI)”) HFEE(TAT]
Venovo Pharma US Inc. JEE R HEE ( TBVI ) R 13E7C 100%

ARFEAEAT]
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

14 MR A TR — AAT (8

B B AT
ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
AR PR R B EX it CEATIAY Bir i f g
EEME A
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A E AT B A ()
B R A R 5 b Hainan, the PRC, The research and US$360,000 100%
Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; technological
transfer of and services
for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and
synthetic drugs;
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs
MF A R PR, WAL E IR 360,0005<7C 100%
AFREALAT RIREEN BB R
5T K BRE A= 4k i
KIREE N B 5 R 2
PTG s ; E
B 52 BB RRFSE
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14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY

2011 4F W &
ANNUAL REPORT

BEF—FE+‘_H=1+—HItEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

14 MR AT — AAT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
LSRR REMEHUB R TN ERTRA B it
Yk
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A TEIRER A A (5)
JbI A Pa G B s R R Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
B Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and
synthetic drugs;
technological transfer
of and services for the
research and development
of biodrugs, natural
drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs
R B C PR HREIIEE, THFIE I B R 4E i 200,0003570 100%
BIRAT] AIRELAT RAREE i T R
WSS M B R
RIRGE B REE R 2
BT I IR 2R
BRI BRI
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 MR AT — AT )

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
AEka ERIIEEYE S5 PN EX it CEITRAY Bir i f g
EEMEA

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A E R AT A ()

SR E R A AR Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
HIRAT] Limited liability development of new
company drugs, natural drugs,
and synthetic drugs;
technological transfer of

and services for research
and development of
biodrugs, natural drugs
and synthetic drugs,
pharmacodynamic and
clinical research of drugs

AR B 4 B AR B, WL E IR 200,0005<7C 100%
AT AFREAAT RIREEN BB R

5T K BRE A= 4k i

RIREER NN 2

DORRE M B

BERUBT I8 B B RBIT
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 B R A FIIlAE — AT ()

(CONTINUED)
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital
Ak ek M B R v A FEEABERY CEATBAY Fr i g
R A

Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued)
A TEIRERA A (5D)

A A PE e B A T Beijing, the PRC, The research and US$200,000 100%
FRAE Limited liability development of drugs,
company natural drugs and synthetic

drugs; technological
transfer of and services

for the research and
development of biodrugs,
natural drugs and synthetic
drugs; pharmacodynamic
and clinical research of
drugs

eI E b R R PR, TF 5 R B B 2 200,000 7T 100%
BIRAT] ARTLAT RIREE i B R

5T M Bk A i

FIRBE N B R 2

Do IR 2z

BER o R RBIE Y
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2011 4 W&
ANNUAL REPORT

HE - F——F+ A =+—HIHEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

14 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 14 B FIM A — AATE (B) 15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - GROUP 15 EERDE 44N
(CONTINUED)
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary R T ST FH A 5 ] A P TR b BT 8 FH 2 AR SR LY
Name Place ofincorporation Principal activities Particulars of Equity diffeljences under ﬂltﬂ.: habﬂlty method ?Sing the a;.)plicaF)le R R LR A SR -
. , . i . taxation rates prevailing in the countries/places in which
and kind of legal entity issued share capital/ interest Held
registered capital the Group operates.
AT MR R A FERAATH DRI A/ i iR No deferred taxation was charged to equity during the AFEROETREI LD (CFFE ) .
g A year (2010: Nil).
Shares indirectly held by the Company:(Continued) The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are AERIER UG E AT
AN E R AT (8D as follows:
e A B AR R Taizhou, the PRC, The research and RMB1,000,000 100%
AHRAT Limited liability development of drugs, Provisions Tax loss Total
company natural drugs and synthetic s L frt
drugs; technological 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
transfer of and services for TF A CF A F A CFFE EF—F F—F4F
the research and RMB' 000 RMB000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB' 000  RMB’000
development of biodrugs, ARTTT ARDTT ARTGTIE ARTTT  ARDBTIT ARTTIT
natural drugs and symh?"c At 1 January wm—H—H 2,436 6,813 2,904 907 5,340 7,720
drugs; pharmacodynamic . s
and elinical research of Debited to the st.atel.nent ML S Em (2,436) (4,377) (2,904) - (5,340) (4,377)
of comprehensive income
drugs Credited to the statement  £3T4TIG % - - - 1,997 - 1,997
T B 4 BB B HREIEM TIRST e BREEEE A E#1,000,0007T 100% of comprehensive income
FBRAT] BREAEATF] RIREE S A
HIF 5T % DR A= 4 i At 31 December wr—A=1—H - 2,436 - 2,904 - 5,340
RERBE N R 5 Bk 2
TR A R
B h 2 BEROT ST MR RS At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused BB FF RS H, RRMAREEA

FiM11,338,0007C (ZF—F4E: HARME 11,611,000
TC) ZARE R R HE o] R RS AR AR R B
FETE TR AT 2R, PR It St AR B 2 A%
ERREE AR T A . 49 AR 11,338,000 (&
— A HARRF11,611,000) ZARFERRIEEEK
S E e S TGS E R

tax losses of approximately RMB11,338,000 (2010:
approximately RMB11,611,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been

B IR 2 R FEA AT R M AR B PO AT e PR A AT o R
R,

Note: None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year or any time during
recognised in respect of RMB Nil (2010: approximately

RMB11,611,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect the remaining
approximately RMB11,338,000 (2010: RMB Nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in

the year.

unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
RMB11,338,000(2010:approximately RMB11,611,000)
that will expire in 2015.
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ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANNUAL REPORT
BE-F—H+F=+—HI4EE wE T+ H =+ —HIFEE
For the year ended 31 December 2011 For the year ended 31 December 2011
16 WORK-IN-PROGRESS - GROUP 16  EER—AHEE 16 WORK-IN-PROGRESS - GROUP (CONTINUED) 16  7ZeEEfh—A4Em #)

2011 2010 The movement in the impairment of work-in-progress for TEMECF-FFE+_A=+—HBEZEH
TE g TR the year ended 31 December 2010 is as follows: .
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT NG ST Contracted Non-contracted Total
B4 RATH &t
Work-in-progress TEEE N, RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
— contracted (Note (2)) —EETH (Hfit) 43,126 31,533 N S NEMTFE  NRMETT
Work-in-progress TFE M At 1 January m—H—H - - -
— not-contracted (Note (b)) —KEH (HRE®) 40,459 41, 767 Provision for impairment loss T AR AR 6, 593 7, 858 14, 451
Less: provision for impairment of W TERE IR 71,874 14, 451 recognised for the year
Work-in-progress At 31 December wt+—H=+—H 6, 593 7,858 14, 451
Total At 11,711 58, 849 17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 ST RN — A KM B A A E]
GROUP AND COMPANY

(a) The balance represents the project costs incurred for the (a) ERRRIE DT OTR M pEE . SBE . REM R
contracted research and development, pharmaceutical BRI R A, HEm A AR AR . Group ALEH

application, registration and testing services, but have

not met the extent of the milestone payments earned in Financial
accordance with the applicable performance assets at fair
requirements and contractual terms. Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
(b) The balance comprises of development costs incurred (b) RSB E S BT S R S B A, H RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
with the intention of outright sales as technology HARET A4, s AfBIE
transfer but have not been contracted. A A TR

AR e 2 aEE a3t
ARHT T ARW#TIT ARHETIT

The movement in the impairment of work=in-progress TEENSE T+ " H =1+ — Bk a8
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is as follows: Ll Assets as per consolidated statement LA BRI R
of financial position 31 December 2011 F——FEt+H=1+—H
Contracted ~ Non-contracted Total ) . s o
B34 SETH ot Trade and other receivables (excluding FEWRRZ A B R O 3,809 - 3,809
R #' [ &5 ¥
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) %ﬁﬁﬂlﬁm) (Bff#¥187119)
A RMETIE ARBTFTE  ARBTT Financial assets at fair value through T RRIEEBIRAEFUR - 1,803 1,803
‘ profit or loss (Note 20) ZamErE (fEE20)
At 1 January m—H—H 6,593 7,858 14,451 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) e MBESSEY (ME21) 6,822 - 6,822
Provision for impairment loss W AR A 24, 732 32, 691 57, 423
recognised for the year Total &t 10,631 1,803 12,434
At 31 December Bt+—H=1+—H 31, 325 40, 549 71, 874
Assets as per consolidated statement SEMBRIREER
\ of financial position 31 December 2010 F2F+A=ZH
The impairment for contracted work-in-progress was AT B E i Do (EL 1B 2 R PR 5 A A Trade and other receivables (excluding FEW iR AL . OF 29,274 - 29,274
due to the total contract cost will exceed total contract BOHI SR, TARTEFEE M ER A R A prepayments) (Note 18 and 19) SFAIES)  (FEEI18F119)
value while the impairment for non-contracted EMEF LA L a FNEE (Eﬁ‘EBlb) ° Financial assets at fair value through ¥ A BEESIRESTES - 60,138 60,138
work-in-progress was due to the suspension of profit or loss (Note 20) LSRG (HE20)
non-contracted PDS projects (note 31b). Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) BERBESEY (Fhidn) 6,910 - 6,910
Total &t 36,184 60,138 96,322
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

SR TR - AREMEAANT 4

Group (continued) ASEE (i)
Other financial liabilities
HoAth 4 R A7
RMB’ 000
ANEHTIT
Liabilities as per consolidated statement LreELRbiR Al
of financial position 31 December 2011 WoE——F+ZA=+—H
Convertible bond RS dices 106, 786
Other payables and accruals LAt AT S A 2 12, 707
Total it 119, 493
Liabilities as per consolidated statement LreELRbiR Al
of financial position 31 December 2010 HoE-FE+ZHA=+—H
Convertible bond RIS 108, 005
Other payables and accruals A A<k R AT B 31, 153
Total &t 139, 158
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)

EM TR/ - AEWMEAAT )

2011 ¢ EW A
ANNUAL REPORT

BE_F——F+_H=1+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Company A
Financial
assets at fair
Loans and value through
receivables profit or loss Total
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
o e
EER R RIR
HREYCGR e &t
ARHTIC ARHTIT ARHTITC
Assets as per consolidated statement o MBI EEER
of financial position 31 December 2011 F——F+"H=F—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14)  FEICIHEARFIE (fiFELe) 12,085 - 12,085
Other receivables Hfth U R 1,813 - 1,813
Financial assets at fair value through o EEEIR RS RIRES - 1,803 1,803
profit or loss (Note 20) SEE (fak0) 721 - 721
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) BlEREEEEY (Wi
Total Gt 14,619 1,803 16,422
Assets as per consolidated statement ke MR R EER —
of financial position 31 December 2010 F-FFE+_H=1+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 14) JREUAL B Jo o ) 2 (FffaE14) 49,599 - 49,599
Other receivables HoAth R 7,309 - 7,309
Financial assets at fair value through o R EE R RRE - 60,138 60,138
profit or loss (Note 20) SRbEE (ko) 53 - 53
Cash and cash equivalent (Note 21) BENESEMEY (Mik21)
Total ;A:’r‘_;rﬁ‘]' 56,961 60,138 117,099
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - 17 £ T R KEMEANT 4 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES - GROUP 18 BRWURR — AEE
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Company ARG
Company (continued) AT ()
2011 2010
Other financial liabilities e i
HoAt b i RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
RMB’ 000 )\E%—FT—U )\qu:j—l:
ARHETIC Trade receivables MR R 39, 216 40, 831
Liabilities as per consolidated statement f A BATRURIT A 1 Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables Ve A e (37, 780) (30, 484)
of financial position 31 December 2011 WoFE——FE+-H=+—H
Convertible bond ik e 106, 786 Trade receivables — net JEWERE SR 1, 436 10, 347
Other payables and accruals HoAth AT 3R B REAT # 1,954
Amounts due to subsidiaries HEATF2m] 17,779
The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days to AEEGTEAERBR AL TR, ATE
Total pe 126, 519 its trade customers. As 31 December 2011 and 2010, the ——ERCR-FRETZASTH, RERTRE
ageing of the trade receivables net of impairment were as U R RS R
Liabilities as per consolidated statement AR R A follows:
of financial position 31 December 2010 PoE-FE+-A=+—H
Convertible bond AR 108, 005 e
Other payables and accruals A A 2 R A B 17, 627 —F ’ £ ZF , FF
RMB™ 000 RMB" 000
N AR¥TIT  ARWTT
Total &t 125, 632
1-30 days 1-30K 833 3,217
31 -60 days 31 60K 39 485
61-90 days 61-90K - 2,430
91-180 days 91-180K& - 425
Over 180 days 180K 564 3,790
Total Hat 1, 436 10, 347
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As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately
RMB564,000 (2010: approximately RMB4,215,000)
were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. These customers have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment is provided in
respect of these balances as there have no significant
changes in the credit quality of these customers and the
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R-F—F+ A =+—H, BRERKHEEG
N R##564,0007C (—EF—F4F: FARHK4,215,00070
) CEIEARFHERE R . HERFR E 2 210
ARG A RGBS E . B AR
B, HHEERARATHREERGNTEE, NAE
o 5 R4 P VR AE KU EL AR SR A AR
A ERUCIE] o A SR AN A £ b S AR B K
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EeMuEXARAAIO



2011 4 B # W

BE Rt H=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2011
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ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES-GROUP (CONTINUED) 18  FEMCHR#K—A%m (80
As of 31 December 2011, trade receivables of approximately BoF——F+t T A=+—H, BERRZFEEL
RMB7,296,000 (2010: approximately RMB9,747,000) NEHE7,296,0007C (H—FF HIARMN9,747,000
were impaired and provided for. The amount of the JO)RHR T MR, MAREREROARKE
provision was approximately RMB37,780,000 as at 31 37,780,000C (—F—F4F #ARME30,484,0007T)
December 2011 (2010: approximately RMB30,484,000). B E Rk BRI S A RS 5
The individually impaired receivables mainly related to Tty REWSCHR A FEMAC I
customers, which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations. It was assessed that a portion of the
receivables is expected not to be recovered.
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of ARG 2 FENUR R R
trade receivables are as follows:
2011 2010
B “FFF
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000
AR#TIT  AR¥TIT
At 1 January #—H—H 30, 484 20, 737
Impairment loss of receivable RESRE R E A (E 8) 7, 296 9, 747
recognized during the year (Note 8)
At 31 December Bt—A=1+—H 37,780 30, 484

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

T B, T 2 SO R % iR EOR R
WRTET (Bl AN G S A A (TR AR S i O

AR LB B IHE
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19 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 19 FEAT IR T A Rk — A ) R AN
GROUP AND COMPANY
The movement in the impairment of other receivables, VA BE e T LAt PR e > 55
deposits and prepayments is as follows:
Group Company
I 4]
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
S®——iE CRBE CE A R EF
AR#FT ARHTT AE¥TIE ARWTIT
Prepayments TR RSR 2, 300 22,901 - -
Deposits Elie 409 287 - -
Other receivables (a) HAFEBEK (a) 13, 077 18, 640 10, 720 7, 309
Less: provision for impairment  Ji: JAEER 15, 786 41, 828 10, 720 7,309
(11, 113) - (8,907) -
Total At 4,673 41, 828 1,813 7, 309
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19 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - 19 TR RER B A Rk — 7 48 1 B A A ) ()
GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED)
The movement in the impairment of other receivables, TEAT AR At B s < 2.
deposits and prepayments is as follows:
Group Company
S 4]
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
SFF FORE R & _F—Ek
AR ARETT ARWTIT  ARWTET
At 1 January w—H—H - - _ _
Provision for impairment loss AR ERSL 11,113 - 8, 907 -
recognised for the year (a) (Note 8)  (a) (Fff#E8) 8, 907 -
At 31 December wt+—H=+—H 11,113 -
Related parties (b) (Note 29) R 77 (b) (FHRE29) 48 4, 045 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) T4 (b) - - 1, 640 -
Third parties T IR 4,625 37, 783 173 7, 309
Total &Rt 4,673 41, 828 1,813 7,309
(a) The carrying amounts of prepayments and other (@) Fe A PR R L At RS T R i B 2\ A (R AR
receivables approximate their fair values. Ao
Included in other receivables was an amount of A EW A 59 A RWE8,907,0007C F— S 1 R
approximately RMB 8,907,000 due from an independent B BT ), ARG -
third party (“the debtor”) which was due on 31 December H=+—H3EH. @R _fFEEEREMAT
2012. The debtor was first granted the fund in 2007 for &7, MORFEA 3% EH . 1 RERGRIES AT .
the purpose of investment with an agreed term of AT G TABIHE R B BB A5 e R
minimum annual return of 3%. There were no collaterals B A WCE TETH A . 2] K ok T ki P ek e
given to the Company. The Company had notified the BRME 0N ERIRER Y. BEAREH, #
debtor to settle the receivable several times before the BT R EAEEA Eml,ﬁlOO,DOO)_E', B M N
maturity date and received no positive response. The FH2,400,0007C AT SEA ML E] R BT i (R 2
amount was fully impaired in year 2011. Up to the
reporting date, the debtor agreed to settle RMB2,400,000
as full settlement. Management believes this RMB2,400,000
is fully recoverable and therefore reverse the impairment
by the same amount in 2012.
(b) The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and (b) flidereiizi- N Y SRR hedn el 5

without fixed repayment term.
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS — GROUP AND COMPANY

A BT
ANNUAL REPORT NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EBARBEZRE SRS SR — AR W A

2

Group and Company

7S 8 2 A
2011 2010

e

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWETT  ARE®TT

Foreign currency bond fund MR 1, 803 4,433
Hong Kong listed shares ik LR - 55, 705
Total =1 1, 803 60, 138

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “investing activities” in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income” in
the statement of comprehensive income (Note 6).

The fair value of all financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on their current bid prices in an
active market as at the end of reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in the following currencies:

EaRBEESERSTIRZ CHEEARSHER
SR TR T

A Fo BB RIA AT IR S SR EE 2 SO (4
W AW A R R [ A A ) EIR (M
Fi6)

firf ¥ B EE R R T IRE 2 A R B
RIS AAER .

% REEEEARCIR. SREELL B
fH:

Group and Company
AL AN ]
2011 2010
SHE R ORE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREETT ARETT
Hong Kong dollars ki - 55, 705
US dollars e 1, 803 4,433
Total &5 1, 803 60, 138

(Loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets through profit
or loss:

H B %A AR EEE IR o RO SRR (R )M

Group and Company
A B AT
2011 2010
T e
RMB™ 000 RMB™ 000

ARWTIE  ARWTT

Gain on disposal of foreign currency bond fund S S R i ad 355 650
Loss on disposal of Hong Kong listed shares HEEFE L HRECHEK (47, 524) (498)
(Loss)/gain on disposal, net e A Rl (EEH R (47, 169) 152

LR E (R M, TR
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS - GROUP AND COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

The Company held financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately RMB 60,138,000 as at 31 December
2010 including shares of approximately RMB 55,705,000
and foreign currency bond fund of approximately RMB
4,433,000. In 2011, as the market price of shares held by
the Company dropped down heavily, the Company had
to sell the all the shares invested and ceased the
investment in shares. The approximately RMB
47,524,000 of loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was all derived from disposal
of shares. Since then the Company had adopted more
conservative investment policy and would only invest in
foreign currency bond fund, the Company held financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
RMB 1,803,000 as at 31 December 2011 which was all
foreign currency bond fund.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - GROUP AND
COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2011 4EEEH G
ANNUAL REPORT
BE-F 4+ A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

HARBEZBRGTIRT SMEE - ARE A
AT ()

AAFIR F—FEFH S+ —HFEEA R
EIZE I e e < R EE A0 A\ B 60,138,000TC,
HoH B2 R A 5 Bk A (EAE 4 B B A0 N R
55,705,000TC M AN FHF4.433,0007C. AT F—4F, A
N R RN T B, AN R
2R ETEER 54 N R¥E47,524,0007C0E 48 (R ¥
M. ZEb, AAFRECERSFFREERIE R
WEIMEESEES . AXARR_FE—F+H=
+—HFA A AEEERERIE, SREE T
H N\ 1,803,000 C MU SIS T 24

BERBEEEY - S EMEEAT

Company
AN ]

2011 2010 2011 2010
TR DR FE CF 4 R R
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ANE#TT ARRETT  ARWETT ARETT

Cash at banks and on hand ST S iR & 6, 822 6,910 721 53
Bank balances and cash were denominated in the SR LE SR TR B
following currencies:
Group Company
A E] AT
2011 2010 2011 2010

TE; A DR R DR RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
NEWTT ARRETT ARWTT ARETT

Renminbi PR 6, 069 6, 822 - -
Swiss Franc Fig i BH 32 - 32 -
US dollars HEI0 721 88 689 53
Total &5 6, 822 6,910 721 53
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 B
Shown in the
Amount  financial statements
Number of &H B HER IR
ordinary shares  HK$’ 000  RMB’ 000
WERHE Tt ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FERREAEO. 1L
Authorised: HE:
At 31 December 2010 and 31 BoE-EFEHH 1, 000, 000, 000 100, 000 106, 000
December 2011 =t—HR
+=A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: CiTAMER T —F 363, 511, 664 36, 351 38, 469
At 31 December 2010 HF+H=+—H
Issue of shares upon exercise FR OB REAT (31T 797, 000 80 67
of share options Z =
At 31 December 2011 BoEF—t+—-H=1+—H 364, 308, 664 36, 431 38, 536
A summary of the above movements in issued share EIRAA T T A BRI R
capital of the Company is as follows:
2011 2010
—g——f % F
Number of Number of
issued ordinary issued ordinary
shares of Par value shares of Par value
HKS$0.1 each HK$000 HK$0.1 each HKS$000
g e i kR f A E PR

O.lCHEER  TE
BT W¥TT

o.1JcH @R WEE
BITHRE  BETT

At beginning of the year el 363, 511, 664 36, 351 363, 511, 664 36, 351

Issue of shares upon exercise HRiBIERARE T 32T 797, 000 80 - -

of share options (Note (a)) ZIEE (M)

At end of the year il 364, 308, 664 36, 431 363, 511, 664 36, 351
Notes: Bt :

(a) During the year, 797,000 (2010: Nil) new shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued upon the exercise of
options under the share option scheme approved by
the shareholders of the Company at an exercise
price ranging from HK$0.36 to HK$0.63 (2010:
Nil) per share. These shares rank pari passu with
the existing shares of the Company.
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(@) AATHRE B RA A AR AR
S FRRE 75 7 A\ LABEIBRES 0. 3695 £2$0.6335 2
Ao £ {5 L SR PR LA GBI A A J Iy, A
A EHA T HFENE1T797,000 (—FE—FF,
) B3 BRI (A S0, 1 BT R, RASEHT IR B
ARAFIBA B A FA4 RS
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 B ()
The Company has share option schemes as at 31 RoFE—— T A =+ —H, RAR A
December 2011, under which it may grant options to AR R T AR [ 2 B DA B AR A B
employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the AERE | 10,209,900 (ZF—F4: ) W ERE
Company. During the year, 10,209,900 options lapsed T e L PR B 2 AT 45 8o
(2010: Nil) in connection with the cessation of
employment of certain employees and the expiry of
exercise period.
797,000 (2010: Nil) option exercised during the year. In ASEEALATH797,000 (TF-FE M) R,
2011, the exercise of share options yielded the proceeds F——4E, FfT BRI HEBA AR
of approximately RMB 321,000. #321,0007C -
Movements in the number of share options outstandin AATENE IR B AR R T EEREE
P g
and their related weighted average exercise prices during ZHE——F+ T H =+ H I E A 2 S
the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows: W
Number of share options
iy gE|
At1l Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price Notes 2011 the year year year 2011
B fiHE(H et RST——  AERH O ARETHE KERE O RoT—F
#F—H—H +ZH=+—H
20 June 2003 HKS$0.32 .
—R=FAA-HA oz 0 © 0 720000 ] ' 720,000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 ..
—E=4 A=A osom 0 P 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
2 March 2005 HKS$0.52
—EERE=H—f 0.5235T (111) 1,572,000 216,600 475,000 880,400
14 December 2005 HKS$0.45 .
— A — AT 045 (iv) 619,200 108,000 439,200 72,000
10 August 2006 HK$0.36
—z2 ot 0367ETT ) 2,590,200 190,800 1,033,200 1,366,200
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
—BEHERA+H 0.625W 7T (vi) 6,449,800 281,600 3,294,500 2,873,700
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 "
— g £ A+ 0435970 (vii) 11,966,800 - 4,968,000 6,998,800
Total
p 34,718,000 797,000 10,209,900 23,711,100
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 22 B2 (4%)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding ARAT AR E AP AT
and their related weighted average exercise prices during F—FEATH =+ HILFEYR 2z #8EEm
the year ended 31 December 2010 are as follows: I
Number of share options
HEEES H
Atl Granted Exercised Lapsed At
Exercise January during during the during the 31 December
Date of grant price Notes 2010 the year year year 2010
=2 H Frief et REF-F AFERM AETHE AFEH O RTRFE
#—-H—H +-HA=1—H
20 June 2003 HK$0.32 .
—mg=FAA=HE oz O 2720000 ] - - 5720000
20 June 2003 HK$0.40 ..
—ER=EAALE oamr O 1800000 ] - - 1800.000
2_.1\%1%1;&22?5:. A—H gg%i% (iii) 1,572,000 - - - 1,572,000
R A oasBr O 615,200 - - - 619,200
10 A t 2006 HK$0.36
CEENEUITE  osn O 2500 ] ) ) P
10 May 2007 HK$0.625 .
:ﬁ%’gtﬁﬁﬁ +H ot WV 6,449,800 - - - 6445,800
7 April 2009 HK$0.435 ..
URAmALH  odssiae (D 11966800 - - - 11,966,800
Total
e 34,718,000 - - - 34,718,000
Notes: Pif e :

(i) These options are exercisable at HK$0.32
(RMBO0.28) per share in three trenches: the
maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1 January
2004 to 31 December 2004, from 1st January 2005
to 31st December 2005 and after 1st January 2006
are 30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.
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]

S5 R AT RS R0.3237T (0.28A
R , W= B REN4E—H
—HEZZZNFE+-_A=+—H. _F=%
EFE—A—HE-FFHFE+_HA=1+—K
ZERBFNF-H—ALUE, 3FIL30%. 60%
B 100% 2 7] A7 B 43 b _E B a8 A
Anty. ZRBRER A HEHE R0
FENHRR AR .
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.40
(RMBO0.35) per share in three trenches: the
maximum percentage of options exercisable
within the periods commencing from 1 January
2003 to 31 December 2003, 1st January 2004 to
31st December 2004 and after 1 January 2005 are
30%, 60% and 100%, respectively. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.52
(RMB0.46) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from 2
March 2005 to 1 March 2015. The options shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.45
(RMB0.40) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
14 December 2005 to 13 December 2015. The
options shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HKS$0.36
(RMBO0.32) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
10 August 2006 to 9 August 2016. The options
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.625
(RMBO0.55) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from
10 May 2007 to 9 May 2017. The options shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the grant date.

These options are exercisable at HK$0.435
(RMBO0.38) per share: the share options
exercisable within the period commencing from 7
April 2009 to 6 April 2019. The options shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
the grant date.
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ZE )

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(\2

(vi)

(vii)

S O 2 AT A P B k0. 40% 7T (0.35A
R , To=HfrfE: MR- =4F—
A—RAZ-2F=4F+-"H=+—H. =&
ENF—-H—HE_FFWEL+_A=1—
HEZFZHF—H—HLE, 7-51L130%-.
609% B2 100%2 F] T4 T AEHE B 7T 43 L b R AR
AAT By, RN B R B
106F A3 B A3

S 2 AT A 0 529 7T (046 A
B | TR oR2EHESH _HE_Z—
FAE= H—H M A T .
R B A2 HEsh 0 a8 AR

HE WM T ERER0.45TT (040N
B |, wit o FEERTEL A FEBE .
FHAE A+ = B AL TR .
NGRS B AR B HRR 0 N AR
A3

HE WM T ERER36HTT (0.32A
Bl |, A ENHFAEE
AAENAIE B A A T Bty . SRR
s B 2R B RS oER AR A

AR T E S R.625HETT (0554
Bl , IR _FZFLtERATHE=F—
CHEFA LA MREAA TR . EER
s B 2R B RS oE AR AR

ZF R AT E A R0.4358T (038 A
R¥) , ITRZFFLENAEHE-F—
JUEEVY A A H e A 2 R A . R
R B B HlE a0 RO A3
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23 RESERVES - GROUP AND COMPANY 23 it — AL AAT 23 RESERVES—GROUP AND COMPANY (CONTINUED) 23 R — REEAEAT )
(a) Group (a) AAEH (b) Company (b) AN
Share-based Capital Contribution Accumulated
Share- Statutory Retained paymentreserve reserve surplus losses Total
based enterprise earnings/ RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
payment Special Capital Statutory expansion (accumulated -
reserve reserve reserve reserve fund losses) Total EABEEY 2 A B At Bk ms Hiihha HH
Date of grant RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 Z M RE ARHFIT NEHRTIT PN AEWTIC
NEHET I
#2HEF Uﬂ_’iﬁ}if T RIS HAGE hEAR kELE HFER At
igﬁﬁ ARMTR ARBTE ARWTE Aﬁéﬁﬁﬁ fg.@f% AT At 1 January 2010 S 3,033 1,366 28011 (17.719) 14,691
Total comprehensive AEFemWHET - - - (32,000} (32,000)
At 1January 2010 WoERE—-H—0 2,946 6,039 1,459 3,803 6,986 51,825 73,058 income for the year
Transactions with owners BITEEMZS
Total comprehensive A AW A R - - - - - (56,928) (56,928) Employee share option benefits Ji B NS 681 - - - 681
income for the year
At 31 December 2010 and i S 3714 1,366 28,011 (49,719) (16,628)
Transactions with owners HAEIES 1 January 2011 T|—:_)5| =+—HE
Employee share option benefits /i BT AERF] 681 - - - - - 681 moF——F—H—H
At 31 December 2010 and RoF—FF 3,627 6,039 1,459 3,803 6,986 (5,103) 16,811 Total comprehensive income AR RELT R A - - - (131,929) (131,929)
1 January 2011 +TZA=Z+—HE for the year
R_F——4F—H—H
Transactions with owners BEPTH 3E By
Issue of ordinary shares upon [ (o R T - 275 - - 275
Total comprehensive AAF AW AT AT - - - - - (152,435) (152,435) exercise of share options
income for the year Exercise of share options Fr iR (84) 84 - - -
Employee share option benefits Jig B eI 7 377 - - - 377
Transactions with owners AR AENZS )
Issue of ordinary shares upon R (o PR e B - - 275 - - - 275 Total transactions with owners T E A SEw 293 359 - - 652
exercise of share options
Exercise of share options FHEE (84) - 84 - - - - At 31 December 2011 it A 4,007 1,725 28,011 (181,648) (147,905)
Employee share option benefits /i BT AERF] 377 - - - - - 377 +ZH=+—H
Total transactions with owners ~ SLAFAEBZHEE 293 - 359 - - - 652
At 31 December 2011 - 3,920 6,039 1,818 3,803 6,986 (157,538) (134,972) Statutory reserve HREATE
+=H=+—H
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Pursuant to the Company Law of the PRC, articles of
association and board resolutions of the Company, the
Company provides 10% from its net profit for the year
determined in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance of this reserve reaches 50% of the paid-up share
capital. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to reduce
any losses incurred or to increase share capital of the
Company. Statutory surplus reserve balance should not
fall below 25% of the registered capital after any such
shares issuance.

Statutory enterprise expansion fund

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
the subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC
shall appropriate 5% or 10% of its net profit after tax as
the statutory enterprise expansion fund. The director shall
have discretion in determining the percentage within the

range specified by the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

AR B A TR RANTFIRHERAA, AN TS
AR It e A A 2 R R A Lo A BE B B 2
AR, HEEZIEEAREL| AN TR A 5005
ke HEAR RSB EEERNEHR (F7)
R FEAATIRA, R T A T B AER
I E AR AR AR A A TR A 925%

TERE A SR

BRSO R ERZHE, RATTTER
S iR A FZFUR EL BR A AR AR 2 5% 2109 BEA s
SEFER RIS . W AR R P B SRR
e R M EAE 2 E 5 .
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BB S — AEEAIALT 4

Group and the Company
ASER R AT

2011 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
I
ANE#EFTT ARETT

Current HiE)
Non-current ERED

106, 786 -
- 108, 005

At 31 December 2011, the carrying amount and fair value
of the current and non-current convertible bonds for the
Group and the Company amounted to approximately
RMB106,786,000 (2010: Nil) and Nil (2010:
approximately RMB108,005,000) respectively.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
convertible bonds are denominated in Swiss Francs.

The movement of the convertible bond is as follows:

BB ——4E+ " =+—H, KEFEFANTH
Tt S T PR e T A T T R A A P MR TR A
FEIER A N 106,786,00000 (—FE—FF: )
Ko (TEFAE . AE108,005,0007T) o

S 1A 2 R 4 AR R T LA - 3 B3
Eﬂn

AR AR B S B an T -

Group and the Company
AEEEANT

2011 2010
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
TR DR EAE
AEW#ETIT ARWTC

At beginning of the year )

Loss arising on revaluation AR E R E R
of convertible bond

Exchange realignment FE SoHf i

At end of the year Hx

108, 005 78, 333

4, 546 22,193
(5, 765) 7,479
106, 786 108, 005

23 RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY(CONTINUED) 23 Bt — AEMAAAT (#)
Special reserve
P B fo e
The special reserve represents the differences between
the nominal value of the shares of VP (BVI), the R R EHREVP(BVI) (42 M S RH BT A% 42 1) Hofth
company which was the holding company of the other B AT Z R AT BRATHAER AL R B ARSE
members of the Group prior to the Group Reorganisation, R S AH T A T 2 Ao LR 75 [ 2 25
and the nominal value of the company’s shares issued
thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.
Capital reserve
H A
The capital reserve represents the additional contributions
made by the shareholders of the Company prior to the B A G e AL AR A R A A W MO PRI SE e
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange MRIAMEZ BN, LA T B w]/ bk
and the additional contributions made by the minority FPRMEN AT EREINT B
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company during the year.
Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the ks
difference between the net assets of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in IO Z B B ER R AR B A T2 BB A A A
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation. TR A E B AH B T LA Eac e B A T (e P & i
ZZH.
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comptise share premium, capital reserve, contributed
surplus and accumulated profit. In accordance with the AT TR IR R 2 fE A IE IR el . B A
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be ol B B R . AR AL B
payable out of the profit or other reserves, including the TR, TEA R B A E T e R A A
share premium account, of the Company and, under the H (AR R ER) - Jﬂﬁfs’", RER 2R Rz 2
Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, B CEETHEBERTTR), RARIEAERIRER
the Company must be able to pay its debts as they fall due B2, REHZATEFERPEIN M.
in the ordinary course of business immediately following
the distribution of dividend.
24 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS - GROUP AND 24 EiEAR R EMNER —AEEAALT
COMPANY
Group Company
AAE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
TF - CEFFF TE A TR
ARHEETIT ARWTIT AR AR¥TIT
Other payables oAt AR 6, 830 28, 481 245 16, 507
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEfH T T - - 17,779 -
Accrued expenses TELT A 5, 877 2,672 1, 709 1,120
Total &5t 12, 707 31, 153 19, 733 17,627
Related parties (Note 29) bty 387 7,957 - -
Subsidiaries FATE] - - 17,779 -
Third parties W W 12, 320 23,196 1,954 17, 627
Total =ril 12, 707 31,153 19, 733 17, 627
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On 10 September 2007, the Company, issued bonds of an
aggregate principal amount of CHF15,000,000. Unless
previously redeemed, repurchased and cancelled or
converted, any outstanding convertible bonds shall be
redeemed at the redemption amount (110% of the
principal amount outstanding of the convertible bonds)
on the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of
issue of the convertible bonds. The bonds bear interest at
the rate of 3.5% per annum and payable annually.

On 4 September 2012, an extraordinary resolution was
passed by the majority of bond holders in accordance
with the terms of the convertible bonds to approve the
extension of the convertible bonds to 10 September 2015
with an increase in interest rate from 3.5% to 4% per
annum. The extension of the convertible bond was also
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 20 September 2012.

RoBELEAHATH, AARIBRITASHEES
15,000,0005 HERRZ % ( 1% ) - BRERTD
AT LA B R g s A A BT R T
el A2 84T E 58 TR A F DABE Bl e 8 T
BRI A BT 110%) TR O] A (B3 A T
M. Za S A LEER R R, 4
Sft, TR 5%,

RoF—AFNANUH, MR AR R
A b R A T e Y Sl T A TR T A
flEEm e —F—FFELA+H, MABEZFEH
f4F3 5% N3 4% . P FRB R I GE A A5 A2 ]
BT —F——FNH - HER R A G,

BEeamuEXARAAE(IN09
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25 CONVERTIBLE BOND - GROUP AND COMPANY 25  TW[#ut{is— ALEMAEAT &) 26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 26 REELBRSHE
(CONTINUED)
2011 2010
The conversion price shall be in Swiss Francs that will be ARG E L LRI E . AU EREEREE RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
equivalent to 130% of the average closing prices of the shares Wi Bar S A TAE R (B E) ILEE =1ET S AE TR
of the Company as published in the daily quotation sheets 1k F A2 w] R BB (e 22 Bir s F iR fr iz ~F AEWTIT ARETIT
published by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited PIMCTTERT130%
for 30 consecutive trading days up to and including the Loss before income tax T (149,772) (55,422)
fifth business day prior to the closing date per share. Adjustments for: g
B — Depreciation (Note 12) —E (HHE12) 2,584 3,508
The bondholders will have the right to convert, at the ﬁ%ﬁﬁ/&ﬁf H ﬂﬁﬂiﬁ#?ﬁ‘ﬁ PR o A — Dividends income — BB WA (106) (331)
Convemlion price, t!w whole of the pnnc:lpal amount .Of the Xﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁ}ﬁﬂ#ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%égﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ — Amortisation of new drugs technology (Note 13) — S (HELD - 2,341
convertible bonds into shares at any time and from time to SRR A L aluation of ctible bond (Note 25 TR LR (25 4546 2193
time, from the date of issue of the convertible bonds. ~ Loss on revluation of convertible band (Note 25) & ’ ’
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 6) —HEWE. W Rz B (54) -
Bondholders may at any time during the period on or after EHERA AT R AR Hik > %, e — Exchange (gain)/loss of convertible bonds — T HR T R 1 (i) /S 4E (4.060) 10,783
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and prior to the 2 F'_ B IR AAT Y [%F] WAL, B O — Impairment loss on work-in-progress —TEE aiE R 57,423 14,451
close of business on the maturity date or (i) if the Company ﬁ ﬁ]ﬁ‘{%ﬁﬁmﬁﬂﬁ{ﬁ‘%ﬁ ‘( Feg Ui 0t [ =l 472 B ) — Impairment loss on other receivables — HAth FEM SR S R 11,113 -
shall have exercised its rights to redeem the convertible ZHER] ) EUE@J;EJ%REE& H ﬁlj\ﬁ‘] %iﬁ flaese H > — Impairment loss on financial assets at fair value through — R A REEEERE RS
bonds (tax redemption or early redemption), then up to the Gﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ . e
fifth business day preceding the date fixed for such HEeE) |, MR RRGEFRINIM0ER:, Bk profit or loss (Note §) SRMREREEN (RLS) A 10.185
redemption, (ii) if the Company shall be in breach of its (B2 A AT A 1 4R el AT 2o v e i% — Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment —3E. R Bk e R 3243 -
obligations under the terms of the convertible bonds (event TR R R B A (Note 12) (PE12)
of default), then up to the time when the convertible bonds — Impairment loss on new drugs technology (Note 13) — BT EE TR E RS (IREL3) - 4,210
be.(:Ume due and repayable to convert, at the conversion — Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial assets at fair value — A REASBIRN RS 47,169 (152)
price, the whole (.)r any part of. the convertible bonds held by through profit or loss (Note 20) SEEEBER (HEE20)
the bondholders into conversion shares. _ )
— Provision for impairment loss of trade receivables — [l B 5 IR B g 7,296 9,747
The carrying amounts of convertible bonds approximated RA B Y MR (LR Se R E A (Note 18) (B 18)
their fair value. — Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) — i RIE AT (2T - (162)
B o — Gain on disposal of new drugs technology — B AR R - (2,577)
As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the liability R_TB——H+ A= +—H, ZUTRERNA _ Interest expenses (Note 6) —FIEET (W) 4,940 4382
. . . : AT A A S f B B pe ’ ’ '
component, included in current borrowings, of the s (RiEBfEcr) HARRETSRRE ~ Interest income (Note 6) —FIBIBAN (FHE) (298) (265)
convertible bonds was calculated using effective interest B(11.79%) 75 . _ ) _ ) ’ .
method at the rate of 11.79%. — Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair value — AP EBIBAT RS 48 487 (19,666)
through profit or loss ¥ e ES TG
As at 31 December 2011, the fair value of the derivative RF - AE A=, TR AR AT — Employee share option benefits (Note 9) —JE B A (WD) 377 681
component of the convertible bonds was calculated using A THARSH 2 B AT LAMonte  Carlo Simulation
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. Any change in the major FAIEH L. Monte Carlo Simulationf®7i BB 28 Overating cash flow bef A o] . ) 15112 3.996
inputs into the Monte Carlo Simulation Model will result in TSR B A T RES AT A TR 2 S IER peraiing Cas. ™ . ore movementin working cap ﬁﬁﬁ%%iﬁ (o -
. R L. P — Increase in work-in-progress —FEEE S (10,285) (12,650)
changes in the fair value of the derivative component.
— Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables — WA B BRI D/ (3 ) 1,615 (4,871)
The change in fair value of the convertible bonds during the ﬂiﬁg%%ﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁiiﬂ‘] o FefE AR S i 4R R Y — Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other receivables — FE ARk B Atk FE Rk (G2l /8900 26,258 (384)
year resulted in a loss from changes in fair value of =Y NN mﬂi 546,0:]{}0 713* ()\:-55_' éﬁ : 2?)1\ §wv{ —(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals — A A R B AT & (i) /58 (2,745) 17,947
approximately RMB 4,546,000 (2010: approximately 22,193,0000T) , o Eiﬂ P —H= — Increase/(decrease) in receipts in advance — TSR 0/ Gl l) 11,925 (361)
RMB 22,193,000), which has been recorded as “loss on T HIRFEEER GRS [ kA B
revaluation of convertible bonds” in the consolidated 1 BHW. . e g
Cash generated from operations mEEnEt e e 11,656 3,677

statement of comprehensive income.

Interest and other expenses of approximately
RMB3,851,000 (2010:approximately RMB3,422,000) has
been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
in respect of the convertible bonds for the year ended 31
December 2011,
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HE—FE——E+ T H=+—HIFEERB, 8A
[#3,851,00000 (=T —FF: #ANREH3,422,000
JC) WA SRR B R H A A e T U SR e
il

a) Major non—cash transaction

During the year, the Group has entered into current
account offsetting agreements with its related parties

a) BENEBRERZST

AARRE, AR MU BT R T AR e, B

in related to the other receivables and other payables
with the amount approximately to RMBS4, 054,000 (2010: Nil).

EemugERARAA N

b REMSCER A LA ) SR AU R B4, 054, 000G (2010: )
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

27 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27

No subsidiary was disposed during the year. During the
year 2010, the Group disposed of its 99.99% equity interest
in Venturepharm Life Sciences Capital Limited to
Venturepharm Group Corp., a related party, for a
consideration of HK$10,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,000).

The net assets of the disposed subsidiary in 2010 were as

B R B A I T

H & — R E AT

RALERE, REMBAHETAT. ROF—FE,
A [0 B 5 Venturepharm Group Corp. H &
e R R E A IR A FI1999.99% MR, R{E%
10,0008 TL(HHE A A [ H$9,0007T)

TSR T F - FE TG A T2 G

follows:
RMB’000
ANE#TIT
NET LIABILITIES DISPOSED OF CH R EEE
Other payables and accruals Al JRE A R S TER B (153)
Gain on disposal HEW R 162
Total consideration A 9
Satisfied by: BUFFI75 Ao
Cash e 9
28 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28 itk ayTe

At the reporting date, the Group had commitments for

R H, AREREA RS TR RRT

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BB HARIEZ ARSI
operating leases in respect of machinery, land and buildings
which fall due as follows:
2011 2010
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
R DR RE
AR¥TT AR
No later than 1 year —4EN 334 2,730
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —4FEL FEAEFEUN 480 907
Later than 5 years i TR 30 40
Total &t 844 3,677
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 AR 5

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related (a) AN T ZEREEN L2 SFEN T

parties:
Nature of transactions Nature of transactions 2011 2010
WS AT 25 SR RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
R e i
ARETIT ARETET
HRIEE (g B IR A ] Royalty income - 5,400
Rental expense 120 120
Venturepharm Group Corp. Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) - 9
AR i) AR AT o M A ] BN - 5,400
MEEH 120 120
Venturepharm Group Corp. W A B R (FHE2T) - 9
Those related parties are under common control of a ZEA RN A AT — U EFIE S

director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.

(a) Save as disclosed above, as at the reporting date, the (a) RS H, AR MBI R 7 A7 LA T BRI A2k

Group had the following major balances with its related TR
parties:
20111 20110
RMB™ 000 RMB™ 000
S
ARWTIT ARWTT
Prepayment: FRATER:
Other related parties HoAt A =) 12 45
Other receivables: Hoftaak -
Amount due from HEH A TESE A IR A A R T S TR 7 - %61
Amount due from Venturepharm &l Venturepharm Life Science 9 1, 641
Life Science Capital Limited Capital Limited
Amount due from BEi%FHILE () AIRAF e s B 4E (i) A TR A - 723
Amount due from ¥ EREL AR HHRAF FEWGE D &R E R A TR A 2 1,359
Other related parties HESCI LA A6 20 ) 25 16

BemaERXARAAINS
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B a R B A T

29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 29 32 5 (4R)
2011 2010
RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
TEAE TERRUE
ARETT ARETIT
Other payables: HAth EAT
Amount due to ¥FFgETEIRLEEAIRAR e ST R AR 387 700
Amount due to M85 M & BEEERHTH IR A AT R 5 A B R A PR A - 276
Amount due to BHRFHIZE (R HIRAH FEfT g (R A IRAH - 800
Amount due to ¥§pd B4 FVERAEY TR JEA ¥ v B A AR AR - 500
Wb A A FLbEA PR A ]
Amount due to BHRFHIZE (R HIRAH FEfT B EE (R G IRAH - 659
Amount due to VL& 44FAIBEEY) FEAHTER B 447 £ B8 S8 A BT - 2,559
Hiffr A A E] FRAH
Amount due to VT 8f 4G R AT JEATT SR B4 2EG TR A ] - 500
Amount due to FRMEFHELEL THHHRAR BN ERSRELTHGERAF - 445
Amount due to Venturepharm Life HE{}Venturepharm Life Science - 1,518

Science Capital Limited

Capital Limited

Those related parties are under common control of a
director, Mr. William Xia GUO, of the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group has no
significant contingent liabilities.
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31

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

32.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The convertible bonds issued by the Company expired on
10 September 2012. Subsequently, an extraordinary
resolution was passed by the majority of bonds holders in
accordance with the terms of the convertible bonds on 4
September 2012 and the extension of the maturity date of
the convertible bonds to 10 September 2015 with an
increase of interest rate from 3.5% to 4% per annum was
approved. The extension of the convertible bonds was
also approved by the shareholders in the extraordinary
general meeting held on 20 September 2012. Details of
the transaction refer to note 25 to the consolidated
financial statement.

The Group passed a resolution in a director’s meeting on
29 March 2012 to suspend all the non-contracted PDS
projects. As a result, the Group made a full provision of
impairment on the non-contracted work-in-progress in
the accounts of 2011.

The Group obtained a loan from a bank in October 2012
with an amount of RMB3,000,000. The interest rate of
the loan was at the base rate issued by the People’s Bank
of China plus the base rate multiplied by 20% per year.

The loan was guaranteed by an independent third party
namely “J05 PR RHEARRAR AT

As at year ended 31 December 2011, the Group has a
94.512% equity interest in a subsidiary, JLEfEF B4
HIHHTFIBAIRAT. On 6 July 2012, the Group
acquired the remaining interest of 5.488% from
non-controlling interests parties and the subsidiary
become wholly owned by the Group.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
order to conform with the presentation of current year.

31

(a)

(b)

(e)

(d)

32.

2011 ¢ EW A
ANNUAL REPORT
BE_F——Ft_HA=t—HIEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

G ASE 2

ARFFATHI TR AR —F - ZFNLA+HE
M. g, FEERRAARE T ARRES BRI
FR ZF— AR LA DY H BB AT 9l R sk 7 S A B
HHRERFEHE _Z—HFNATH, Az
F S S, suili N4, IR S I S
ERRERT ZF-ZFENLA ST HERIBERE
AT FEAHINE 2B A O B R B 25

FEFER -F-CHFE=A S PNHZERGERT
PR T AR & R AT A 2 SR B B Y 38 5
(PDS) . [HlUL, AGEBRALERE M BB T LA
B (6 E 2 it AT S WO DAL AR 6

AEFPR R A AR ERRRAARE
3,000,000, ZHH—4F. FFEF|ZZHE N RERITHYE
BECR A _Li20%. M ERERMIL e <k
AN AR AR AiBRA.

FAEFPFE-—FE+ = AR
E AR EE IR AT, S12%F N . B F
—ZA-EANE L AR R 2 A T
AT ER T 5. 488%E A, AEMIRTERFAZATIN
Hrf R .

HoBRT

T BBy CEH MDA SUA R 2 B 807 R
.

e EXARLATINS
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T BHE
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS K
Year ended 31 December
BEF A=A
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—EEHAE —ERERNF ZEFENE TR A
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMEB’ 000 RMB’™ 000 RMB’ 000
ANEWET T ANBE#TT AR#TT AERTTT ABR#TT
Turnover BEHE 38, 729 39, 186 47, 308 37, 687 18, 099
(Loss)/profit before tax BRARET (Hs5H) /A 1, 888 (27, 242) 6, 310 (55, 422) (149, 772)
Income tax fRIE (788) 9, 930 (277) (1, 838) (4, 024)
(Loss)/profit after tax before (P78 AEE S e B il 1, 100 (17,312) 6, 033 (57, 260) (153, 796)
non-controlling interests CIRY 2Dk czil
Non-controlling interests s 197 958 243 332 1, 361
(Loss)/profit for the year B AR IR R 8 2 AR 1,597 (16, 354) 6, 276 (56, 928) (152, 435)
after non-controlling interests B CEsHD /#F
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARK
As at 31 December
ArZH=T—HILFE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
e =S atc 2 TR NE ZERNE AR i
RMB’ 000 RMB" 000 RMB” 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
MNERFFIT NI AR NEREFIT PN i
Total assets less current M EIRRE AR 219,172 172, 141 191, 237 164, 330 (96, 752)
liabilities
Non current liabilities e A E R ATMES (95, 936) (65, 785) (78, 333) (108, 005) -
(Corporate bonds payable)
Non-controlling interests A f i il 2 (2,592) (1, 620) (1,377 (1, 045) 316
Sharcholders” funds [ SR A 120, 644 104, 736 111, 527 55, 280 (96, 436)
Notes to the financial summary: BB B 3 -

1  The results for each for the five years ended 31 December 2011 have 1

been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of the Group
as if the Group structure, at the time when the Company’s shares were
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, had been in existence throughout the years
concerned. The results for each of the four years ended 31 December
2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 have been extracted from the
corresponding audited annual financial statements.

2 This financial summary indicates the consolidated results of the 2

Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 1 January 2007 or since
their respective dates of incorporation or acquisition, whichever is a
shorter period. The consolidation statement of financial position at 31
December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011 are the combination of
the statement of financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
at 31 December 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 and 2011. In the opinion of
the directors, the resulting consolidated financial statements give a
more meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group
as a whole.
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BE -+ A = —H I ARSI R TR
BOFEIERR T, AR A I 2 SR 2 o R 7R 2 WA
B FTARAFIRIZAR LT O — BATE . ME—RFLF,
ZRENE, CRBRNFRTR-RET A = —H LA
AR BB AR SERAT TR N AR A B R

ARBREEIT A AT R RAT H —F R LA — AR
B 45 ERE ST RO E Y (LA L ASE) B2
HEL RNTRBLE. CRRAE. RTAE. SR
B R R 2 T T E e e
RAFR-HELE. —RE/F. “ETIE. SR
B PSR MBRREZ A6 §EA,
B B BT M BRI SRR



